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Dr. Patricla Camp
Superintendent of Schools
pcamp@rahway.net

. . 1138 Kiine Place
| ahway Public School District Rahway, NJ 07065

{732) 396-1000

Stephen Fried

Buslness Administralor/Board Secretary
Phone-732-396-1010
Fax-732-827-0517

sfried@rahway.nel

March 3, 2023

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Rahway Public Schools

County of Union, New Jersey

Dear Board Members;

The annual comprehensive financlal report of the Rahway Public Schools (District) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 is hereby submitted. Responsibllity for both the accuracy of the data
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, Including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
data presented in this report Is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner
designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of
the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
District's financial activities have been included,

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in four sections: introductory,

financlal, statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the
District's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section Includes the
basic financial statements and required supplementary Information, as well as the auditor's
report thereon. The financial section also includes Management's Discussion and Analysis,
which is an overview of the District's current financial status and future outlook, The stallstical
section includes selected financlal and demographic. information, generally presented on a
multi-year basls, The District Is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.8. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations are included In the single audit section of this
report,

REPORTING ENTITY AND iTS SERVICES:

The Rahway Public Schools is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) as established by National Council on
Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 3. The Rahway Board of Education and all its
schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade jevels Pre-K
through 12. These include regular, vocational and speclal education programs. Enrollment
appears to be stabilizing after the disruptions during the global pandemic,

1. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:




Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets are protected from loss, thefi, or misuse and to
ensure statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles {(GAAP). The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
these objectives are met, The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of
a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and
beneflts requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a reclpient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that an adequate Internal control structure Is in place to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regutations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also
subject to periodic evaluation by the District's management. As part of the District’s single audit
described earller, lests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure,
Including that portion related to federal and state financlal assistance programs, as well as to
determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

2. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controts, the District maintains budgstary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund,
the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the
capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financlal section,

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-
appropriations of fund balance In the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance as of June 30, 2022.

3. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as
promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds, These funds are explained in "Notes to
the Basle Financial Statements,” Note 1,

4, CASH MANAGEMENT.

The Investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed In "Notes
to the Basic Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan
which requires It to deposit public funds in public depositorles protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"), GUDPA was enacted In
1970 to protect Governmental Unifs from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the
Act.

5. RISK MANAGEMENT:

The District is a member of the New Jersey School Insurance Group {the "NJSIG"). The Fund is
a risk-sharing public entity pool established for the purpose of Insuring against workers'
compensation claims, general liability, property and vehicle insurance.

6. OTHER INFORMATION:




State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The Board's finance commitiee selected the accounting firm of Suplee,
Clooney & Company. in addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the
audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act as amended and the
related Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The auditor’s report
on the basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report.

The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit
section of this report.

7. ACKNOWILEDGMENTS:

We would like lo express our appreciation to the members of the Rahway Board of Education
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our
financial operation, The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of our administrative, financlal, accounting, and secretarial
staffs.

Respectiully submitted,

Oses” A

Aleya Shoieb Stephen Fried
Acting Superintendent of Schools  Board Secretary/Business Administrator
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SurLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-7859-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

City of Rahway School District
County of Union

Rahway, New Jersey 07065

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund of the City of Rahway School District, in the County of
Union, State of New Jersey (the “District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the District as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash fiows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the
"Uniform Guidance”) the audit requirements of State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 *Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards and provisions are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2022, the
District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinions
are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant fo the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability
to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, the Uniform Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards the Uniform
Guidance, the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 and Government Auditing Standards, we:

« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
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« Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through C-3,
the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEB)
in Exhibits M-1 and M-2 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information schedules and data such as the combining statements and individual fund financial
statements, and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as
listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08,
“Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New
Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover
the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information
and the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. if, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of
the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District as of June 30, 2021, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated March 2, 2022, expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements as to
the conformity of the financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 3, 2023 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financiai reporting or on compliance. That reportis an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ek Uiy o,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Kold (1)

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

March 3, 2023
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the City of Rahway School District's (the District) financial
performance provides an overall review of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's
financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and
notes to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement
No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements-Management’s Discussion and Analysis-for the State and
Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative information between the current
fiscal year (2021-2022) and the prior fiscal year (2020-2021) is required to be presented in the
MD&A. In fiscal year 2022 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 87-l.eases.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2022 are as follows:

» The state continues to delay the final two state aid payments into the subsequent budget
year. Therefore, the final two payments were not reflected on the GAAP basis financial
statements for the 2021/2022 school year. The amount of the deferred state aid
payments, which were received in July 2022, is $3,472,307.00.

e General revenues accounted for $78,652,565.03 or 75% of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating/capital grants and
contributions accounted for $26,622,566.95 or 25% of all revenues.

e The District had $98,482,379.85 in expenses; $26,622,566.95 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General
revenues of $78,652,565.03 were adequate to provide for these programs.

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a financial whole,
an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look
at specific financial activities.

13



CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the
activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a
longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail.
For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as
well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the
District’s most significant funds. In the case of the district, the General Fund is by far the most
significant fund.

Reporting the District as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide
programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole iooks at all financial transactions and
asks the question, “How did we do financially during 20227?". The Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements include all assets and
liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account, all of the current year's
revenues and expenses regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in those assets. This
change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a
whole, the financial position of the District has improved or diminished. The causes of this
change may be the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors
include current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required
educational programs and other factors.

in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

e Government Activities — All of the District's programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities,
student transportation and extracurricular activities.

o Business-Type Activilies — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services

basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service
program is reported a business activity.

14



CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Reporting the District's Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial reports provide detailed information about the District's funds. The District uses
many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The District's governmental
funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt Service
Fund.

Governmental Funds

The District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows
into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future
years. These funds are reported using an accounting method calied modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and ali other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund
information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. These
statements closely resemble financial statements of a private sector business entity.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Assets

Table 1
Net Position

Current and Other Assels

Capital Assets
Total Assels

2022

$59,101,164.12
52,499,068.21

Table 1 provides a comparative summary of the District’s net position for 2022 and 2021.

(As Restated)
2021

$16,957,110.00
50,538,875.16

111,600,232.33

67,496,985.16

Deferred Outfiows 1,582,078.00 1,643,977.00
Liabilities

Other Liabilities 6,968,079.54 4,023,345.00
Long-Term Liabilities 60,195,925.50 25,994 418.00
Total Liabilities 67,164,005.04 30,017,763.00
Deferred Inflows 5,711,407.00 5,499,053.00
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,555,307.21 37.607.869.16
Restricted 50,795,808.24 8,752,905.00
Unrestricted(Deficit) {13,034,317.16) (12,836,628.00)
Total Net Position $40,316,898.29 $33,624,146.186

The District's combined net position was $40,316,898.29 on June 30, 2022. The District's
investment in capital assets is shown net of any related debt used to acquire those assets.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED
Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal years 2022 and 2021.

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

2022 2021
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $443,404 56 $244,654.00
Operating Grants and Contributions 26,179,072.39 36,713,140.00
Capital Grants and Contributions 117,434.00

General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants and Entitlemenis
Other

Total Revenues

Program Expenses

Instruction

Support Services:
Student and Insfruction Related
School Administration
General/Central/Adm. of Techneclogy
Maintenance of Facilities
Student Transportation

Business Type Activities

Other

Total Expenses

Increase/ (Decrease) in Net Position

46,594,889.00
31,606,108.92
452,566.11

46,623,173.00
20,877,132.00
390,928.00

105,275,131.98

104,966,461.00

58,769,781.94

63,079,728.00

15,810,861.14 13,698,085.00
5,864,863.03 5,678,488.00
2,502,558.13 3,542,863.00
4,680,021.65 5,630,763.00
5,236,117.24 3,152,655.00
2,453,666.75 976,948.00
3,064,508.97 252825200
98,482,378 85 98,187,682.00

$6,792,752.13

$6,778,779.00

Both revenues and expenses increased mainly as a result of the district recognizing a larger on-
behalf TPAF pension contribution as a revenue and as an expense based upon the State's
Actuarial report.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Government Activities

Property taxes made up 45 percent of revenues for governmental activities in the District. There
was a $28,284.00 decrease in property taxes or .06 percent from the prior year. The District's
total revenues were $102,407,698.02 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Instruction comprises 60 percent of district expenses. Support services make up 35 percent of
the district expenses and other services and expenses make up 5 percent.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities were comprised of charges for services and
operating grants and contributions in the food service program. The Board of Education
continues to work to increase sales in the program and reduce operating costs. The cafeterias
located in each school building offer flexibility in food selection, menu offerings and pricing that
meets the needs of the students. The following are some of our major business type activity
results.

+ Business type revenues exceeded revenues by $413,767.21.

e Revenues consist of $150,682.38 in operating revenue from charges for services and
$2,716,751.58 from grants and contributions.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges offsetting those
costs.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost
of these services supported by tax revenue and unrestricted federal and state entitlements.

Table 3
Net Cost of Services

Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of
Services 2022 Services 2021 Services 2022 Services 2021
Instruction $58,760,781.94 $63,079,728.00 $43,193,607 49 37,208,736.00
Support Services:
Students and Instruction Related 15,810,861.14 13,698,085.00 10,123,403.98 8,144,700.00
General Administration, School
& Central Administration 8,467,422.16 9,121,351.00 6,892,251.78 7,063,531.00
Maintenance of Facilities 4,680,021.65 5,630,763.00 4,680,021.65 4,105,887.00
Student Transportation 5,236,117.24 3,152,555.00 4,319,696.24 2,182.971.00
Other 3,064,508.97 2,528,252.00 3,064 508.97 2,514,089.00
Business-Type Activities 2,453,666.75 976,048.00 (413,767.21) (105,560.00)
Total Net Cost of Services $98,482,379.85 $98,187,682.00 $71,859,812.89 $61,112,454.00

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of students and the
interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities. Tuition paid to
other schools for regular and special education students is also included here.

Students and instruction related include the activities involved with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and central services include expenses associated
with administrative and financial management of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings and
equipment in an effective operating condition.

Student transportation includes activities with the conveyance of special education students to
and from school, school activities and athletic events, as provided by state faw.

“Other” includes unallocated depreciation and interest on long term debt.

Business-Type activities include activities in the food service program.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

The School District’s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt
service fund presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Excluding the capital projects fund, total revenues amounted to
$104,538,747.77 and expenditures were $99,071,069.88.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of
this report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management,
which required significant budget adjustments to contend with state aid reductions. The
following schedules present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds, excluding
the capital projects fund, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the amount and
percentage of increase or decrease in relation to prior year revenues.

Percent
Increase{Decrease) increase
Reyenues Amount Percent of Total from FY 2021 (Decrease}
Local Sources $47,404 657.20 45.35% _ $147,601.20 0.52%
State Sources 53,269,704.33 50.96% 9,360,494.33 36.93%
Federal Sources 3,864,386.24 3.70% 460,255.24 31.12%
Total $104,838,747.77 100.00% $9,968,350.77 18.06%

The following schedule represents a summary of the governmental funds expenditures,
excluding the capital projects fund, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, and the percentage
of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts,

Percent
Increase(Decrease) increase
Expenditures Amount Percent of Total from FY 2021 (Decrease)
Current:

Instruction $34,513,333.87 34.84% ($21,839,067.13) -174.48%
Support Services 62,275,471.81 62.86% 33,082,469.81 34.69%
Capital Outlay 438,464.20 0.44% 348,046.20 44 .25%
Debt Service 1,843,800.00 1.86% (266,658.00) -16.91%
Total $99,071,069.88 100.00% $11,224,790.88 20.86%
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the Board of Education, when appropriate, approved budget
transfers to keep accounts in balance. Transfers to the budget were made to accurately reflect
expenditures according to state guidelines and prevent over-expenditures in specific line item
accounts. These revisions bear notation:

o TPAF, which is the State's contribution to the pension fund, post-retirement benefits and the
employer’s share of FICA costs, is neither a revenue or expenditure item in the budget;
however, the School District is required to present this information in the revenue and
expenditure sections of the report.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2022, the District had $60,195,925.50 of outstanding long-term liabilities. Of this
amount, $1,821,856.50 is for compensated absences, $8,164,078.00 of net pension liability and
$50,209,991.00 of serial bonds and unamortized premium on bonds for school construction.

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2022, the District had a net of $52,499,068.21 invested in land,
building and building improvements, and machinery and equipment. Table 4 shows fiscal year
2022 balances compared o 2021.
Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

{As Restated)

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net: of Depreciation
Land

2022

$1,546,445.00

2021

$1,546,445.00

Construction in Progress $4,188,460.96 $290,968.00

Building and Building Improvements 43.632,320.00 45 .479,549.00

Machinery and Equipment 2,831,282.25 2,958,317.00
Total Governmental Activities Capital Assels, Net 52,198,508.21 50,275,279.00
Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net:of Depreciation

Machinery and Equipment 300,560.00 264,596.00
Total Business Type Aclivities Capital Assets, Net: 300,560.00 264,596.00
Total Capital Assets, Net $52,499,068.21 $50,539,875.00
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
UNAUDITED

Overall net capital assets increased by $1,959,193.21 from fiscal year 2021 to fiscal year 2022.

For the Future

Everyone associated with the Rahway School District is grateful for the community support of
the schools. A major concern is the financial support required to maintain appropriate class
sizes and services. This, in an environment of high inflation and anticipated flat state aid
support, means an ever-increasing reliance on local property taxes.

The Rahway School District has committed itself to financial and educational excellence. Its
system for financial planning, budgeting and internal financial controls is audited annually and it
plans to continue to manage its finances in order to meet the many challenges ahead.

in the 2019-20 school year, the Rahway School District embarked on a referendum which
included a one to one initiative for grade six to twelve students, much needed replacement of
sections of roof at each school, boilers, fire system upgrade, security camera system expansion,
replacement of windows and doors, as well as select classroom rehabilitation projects at each
school. The district is three years into this multi-year process, and is greatly appreciative to the
community for its commitment and support.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management Office

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with
a general overview of the School District's finances and to show the School District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional information contact: Stephen Fried, Business Administrator/Board Secretary, Rahway
Board of Education, 1138 Kiine Place, Rahway, NJ 07065. Also, please visit our website to
learn more about our Schoot District.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2022.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
inventory
Restricted assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets, net
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES:

Related to loss from debt refunding
Related to pensions
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Payable to state government
Payroll deductions payable
Unempioyment payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent fiabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year:
Net pension liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds & unamortized premiums payable
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Special Revenue fund (deficit)
Capital projects fund
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$43,034,217.68 $800,790.45 $44,735,008.13
3,978,625.46 222,995.88 4,201,525.34
27,205.57 27,205.57
10,137,425.08 10,137,425.08
5,734,905.86 5,734,905.06
46,463,602.25 300,560.00 46,764,162.25
110,248,676.43 1,351,555.90 111,600,232.33
266,230.00 266,230.00
1,325,848.00 1,325,848.00
1,562,078.00 1.592,078.00
3,051,789.67 138,296.64 3,191,086.31
1,566.00 1,556.00
447 972.80 447,972.80
145.08 145.08
2,669,170.33 23,854.05 2,693,124.38
634,184.97 634,184.97
1,574,115.00 1,574,115.00
8,164,078.00 8,164,078.00
1,821,856.50 1,821,856.50
48,635,876.00 48,635,876.00
67,000,754.35 163,250.69 67,164,005.04
5,711,407.00 5,711,407.00
5,711,407.00 5,711,407.00
2,254,747.21 300,560.00 2,655,307.21
{10,883.58} {10,883.58)
45,982, 682.82 45,982,682.82
4,824,109.00 4,824,108.00
{13,922,062.37) 887,745.21 {13,034,317.16)
$39,128,593.08 $1,188,305.21 $40,316,808.29

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS:

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Capital reserve
Maintenance reserve
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
interfund

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Intergovernmental payable- state
Interfunds payabie
Payroll deductions payable
Unemployment payable
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account
Maintenance reserve account
Excess sumplus designated for
subsequent years expenditures
Excess surplus - current year
Semi supplemental designted for
subsequent years expenditures
Capital projects fund
Debt service fund
Unemployment compensation
Student activities
Scholarships
Assigned for year-end encumbrances
Committed for:
Year-end encumbrances
Unassigned:
Special revenue fund {deficit}
General fund

Tota! fund balances

Total iabilities and fund balances

EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL

FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
$5,706,220.78 $971.142.69 37,008,083.05 $158,762.16 $43,934,217 .68
0,261,757.08 9,261,757.08
B75,668.00 875,668.00
1,487,670.29 138,214.00 1,625,884.29
2.352,641.17 2,352,641.17
200,000.00 390,662.56 4,765.65 59541811
17.621,325.15 3.714,446.42 37,146,297.05 163,517.71 58,645,586.33
881,325.24 1,103,684.97 171,524,486 2,158,544 .67
1,556.00 1,566.00
390,662.56 204,755.55 595.418.11
447,972.80 447,972.80
145.08 145.08
2,620.079.03 49,091.30 2,669,170.33
1,720,105.68 3,725,330.00 425,371.31 5,870,806.99
9,261,757.08 9,261,757.08
875.,668.00 §75,668.00
1,800,000.00 1,800,000.00
1.800,000.00 1,800,000.00
15,099.00 15,099.00
31.076,709.82 31,076,709.82
163,517.71 163,517.71
333,342.00 333,342.00
305,883.16 305,883.16
174,079.26 174,079.26
558,249.58 558,249.58
5,644,215.92 5,644,215.92

(490,846.00) (490,848.00)

1,257,103 81 1,257,103.81
15,801,219.47 {10,883 58) 36,720,925.74 163,517.71 52,774,779.34
$17,621,325.15 $3,714,446.42 $37,146,297.05 $163,517.71 $58,645,586.33

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXHIBIT “B-1"
SHEET #2

CITY Of RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward) $52,774,779.34
Amounts Reported for Governmental Aclivities in the Statement
of Net Position {A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financiai
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets $89,739,725.21
Accumulated Depreciation {37.541,217.00}
52,198,508.21
Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other refated
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as fiabilities in the funds.
Net pension fiability {8,164,078.00}
Compensated absences payable {1.821,856.50)
Serial bonds payable ($49,419,000.00)
Premium on refunding debt, net (790,991.00)
Unamortized Deferred Amount on Refunding Bonds, net 266,230.00
549.943.?61 .00!
{59,929,695.50)
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reperted in the funds,
Pensions:
Deferred Qutflows
Pension related 1,325,848.00
Deferred Inflows:
Pension related (58,711,407.00})
Certain liabitities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.
Accounts Payable - Pension related (895,255.00)
Accrued tnterest Payable {634,184.97)

(1.529,439.97)

Net Position of Governmental Activities
$39,128,593.08

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-2"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
REVENUES:
L.ocal sources:
Local tax levy $44,796,679.00 $1,798,210.00 $46,594,889.00
Tuition- other lea's 19,953.50 19,953.50
Miscellaneous- unrestricted 427 260.56 $4,755 55 432.016.11
Miscellaneous- restricted 596.50 $361,957.64 362,564.14
Total revenues-local sources 45 244 489.56 361,957.64 4,755.55 1,798,240.00 47,409,412.75
State sources 40,642,497.89 3,561,617.44 87.003.70 45,589.00 53,336,708.03
Federal sources 173,830.22 3,690,556.02 3,864,386.24
Total revenues 95,060,817.67 7.,634,131.10 71,759.25 1,843,799.00 104,610,507.02
EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Instruction:
Regular 18,145,961.35 3.474,713.16 22.8620,674.51
Speciat education 7.010,600.96 1,190,537.39 8,201,138.35
Other instruction 3,691.521.01 3.691,521.01
Support services:
Tuition 6,541,794.13 6,541,794.13
Student and instruction related services 8,061,184.92 3,527,665.68 1%,588,850.80
General administrative services 1,204,285.71 1.204,285 74
School administrative services 3,388,066.41 3,388,0686.41
Centrai services 579,142.36 579,142.38
Administration information technology B824,94187 824 941 87
Plant operations ard maintenance 5,076,899.16 5,076,899.16
Siuden{ transportation services 5,245,119.22 5,245,119.22
Unallocaied benefits 27.826,372.15 27,826,372.15
Capital outlay 164,040.85 274,423.25 $4,108.804.96 4,547,269.18
Debti service:
Principal 1,310,000.00 1,310,000.00
interest 533,800.00 533,800.00
‘Total expenditures 88,759,930.20 B.487,339.68 4,108,804.96 1,843,800.00 103,179,874.84
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 6,300,887.47 (833,208.58) {4,037,045.71) (1.00) 1,430,632.18
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfer in 389,480.00 4,755.55 394,235.55
Operating transfer out (389,480.00) (4.755.55) (394,235 55)
Bond proceeds 38,714,000 00 38,714,000.00
Total financing sources{usss): {38%9,480.00} 389.480.00 38,709,244 45 4 755.65 38,714,000.00
Net change in fund balances 5,911,407 .47 (443,728.58) 34,672,198.74 4,754 .65 40,144,632.18
Fund balances, July 1, 2021 9,989,812.00 432,845.00 2,048,727.00 158,763.16 12,630,147.16
Fund balances, Jung 30, 2022 $15,901,219.47 {$10,8683.58) $36,720,925.74 $163,517.71 $52,774779.34

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total nel change in fund balances - governmental funds {from B-2}

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2} are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expendilures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assels is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlays in the period.

Depreciation expense ($2,580,814.00)
Capital outiays 4,547,269.16
Capital outlays not capitalized (43,225.95)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment reduces
tong-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statements of activities.

Paid - Principal on bonds

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue
in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Proceeds from bonds
Original issue premium on refunding bonds {net}

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term Habilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Paid - Principal on instaliment purchase contract
Amortization of deferred amounts on refunding bonds

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess of when due.
fn governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued inferest is an addition in the
reconcitiation.

District pension contributions are reporied as expenditures in the governmental funds when made,
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reported net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions 807.081.00

Add: Pension benefit 1,149,259.00

In the statement of aclivities, cerain expenses, €.9., compensated absences (vacaltions) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amounit, the difference is a reduction in the recongiliation {-); when the
paid amoun} exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in net position of governmental aclivities

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

3

EXHIBIT "B-3"

$40,144 63218

1.923,220.21

1,310,000.00

(38,714,000.00)
244,115.00

228,539.00

(80,409.00})

(425,650.97)

1,956,340.00

{207,810.50)

56,378,084 92



OTHER FUNDS
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ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
inventories

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment
t ess accumutated depreciation

Total noncurrent assels

Totail assets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities
Total liabililies
NET POSITION:
Net Investments in capital assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

~ CITY.OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICE FUND

800,790.45

4,393.10
212,181.11
6,425.87
27,205.57

1,050,985.90

678,080.00
{377.520.00)

300,560.00

1,351,555.90

139,296.64
23,854.05

163,250.69

163,250.69

300,560.00
887,745.21

1,188,305.21

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES [N FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Sales-Nonreimbursable

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales-Reimbursable
Cost of sales-Nonreimbursable
USDA Commodites
Salaries and Wages
Empioyee benefits
Management Fee
Supplies and Materials
Repairs and Maintenance
Insurance
Laundry/Uniforms
Other Expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES:

State sources
School lunch program

Federal sources
School lunch and PB programs
School breakfast program
Emergency operation cost program-schools
P-EBT administrative cosis reimbursement
National food distribution commodities

Total nonoperating revenues
Net income
Total net position - July 1

Total net position - June 30

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-5"

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIE
ENTERPRISE FUND
FOOD SERVICE FUND

150,682.38

150,682.38

840,670.00
17,897.50
231,090.55
735,873.49
205,871.02
78,871.57
143,713.20
24,793.37
43,999.64
5,728.13
90,510.19
34,648.00

2,453,666.75

(2,302,984.37)

49,615.79

2,411,082.56
22482168
93,943.00
6,198.00
231,090.55

2,716,751.58

413,767.21

774,538.00

1,188,305.21




CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activilies:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to employee benefits
Payment to suppliers

Net cash provided (used for) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources
Federal sources
Net cash provided by {used for} noncapitai
financing activities

Cash flows from capitat and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (l0ss)

to cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation

Change in assets and labilities:
{increase) Decrease in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (Decrease) in deferred revenues
{Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable

Net income (Loss)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-6"

82,731.84
(735,873.49)
(205,871.02)

(1,372,789.25)

(2.221,801.92)

4522269

2,547 960.68

2593,183.37

(70,612.00)

(70,612.00)

300,769.45

50002100

800,790.45

(2.302,984.37)

34,648.00

{9,082.57)
(4,312.82)
3.326.87
1,08533
55,517.64

(2,221,801.92)



NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Rahway School District have been prepared in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied
to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting
policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Rahway School District is a Type Il District located in Union County, New
Jersey. The District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established
to function as an educational institution. The District is governed by a nine
member board elected to three-year terms and is responsible for the fiscal
control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is
responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units” (GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of
the following criteria should be discreetly presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or heid by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitied to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual
organization that the specific primary government, or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are significant to that primary government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary schools, middle schools, and a high school. There were no additional
entities required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as
described above, in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not
includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Positions and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements
distinguish generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the
District.  Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year end. The
Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District's governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b} grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as generally revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are
presented. The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to
require New Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in
accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE
believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest
and to promote consistency among district financial reporting models.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the
District. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional
equipment which are classified in the Capital Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the
District includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted
accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities state that
General Fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays
for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are
derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted
capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey
Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those
that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land,
existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings,
additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in
equipment. These resources can be transferred from and to Current
Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account
for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt
service or capital projects. Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to
account for the proceeds of specific revenue from State and Federal
Governments (other than major capital projects, debt service or the
enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted or
committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned
to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction
of capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by
proprietary funds). The financial resources are derived from temporary
notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a
separate question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a
special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund, and from aid
provided by the State to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, principal and interest
on bonds and loans issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction, and improvements programs.
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NOTE 1.

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to cafeteria operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that
the cost (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of
providing goods or services to the students on a continuing basis are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive monies under the
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an
“accounts receivable.” Revenue from grants, entittements, and donations are
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
dJune 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions
can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, ciaims and judgments, and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
leases are reported as other financing sources.

All governmental and business type activities and enterprise funds of the District
folliow FASB Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30,
1989, Account Research Bulletins, uniess those pronouncements conflict with
GASB pronouncements.

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office. In accordance with P.L. 2011, c. 202, which became effective
January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the School Board election to the
date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual
base budget unless required by the mandated State budget CAP. The legal level
of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line
item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
BA:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the line item leve!l. All budget amendments and transfers must be approved by
School Board resolution. All budget amounts presented in the accompanying
supplementary information reflect the original budget and the amended budget
(which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets
during the year).
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
management control device during the year. For governmental funds there are
no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally
mandated recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only
and the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to aliow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund fund for which the District has
received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at
fiscal year-end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

41



NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED])

interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available expendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements, and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their acquisition values on the date
received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the
value of the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. In fiscal
year 2017, the District implemented GASB 72. The objective of this is to improve
financial reporting by clarifying the definition of fair value for financial reporting
purposes, establishing general principles for measuring fair value, providing
additional fair value application guidance, and enhancing disclosures about fair
value measurement. These improvements are based in part on the concepts
and definitions established in Concepts Statement No. 6, Measurement of
Elements of Financial Statements, and other relevant literature. Capital assets
are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
L and Improvements 20

Buildings 40

Building Improvements 20-40
improvements Other than Buildings 20

Heavy Equipment 10-15

Office Equipment and Furniture 10

Computer Equipment 5
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NOTE 1.

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick days) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB
18), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for compensated
absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees
are paid for accrued vacation. The District’'s policy permits employees to
accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent
years. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused
sick leave in accordance with the District's agreements with the various
employee unions and contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon retirement. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are
currently eligible to receive retirement payments.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to
be used in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental
funds, in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the compensated absences are
considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a
reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designations of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the food service fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and capital projects funds represents
funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable under generally accepted accounting principles.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when
due.

Net Position

GASB 63 provides guidance for reporting net position in the statement of
financial position and related disclosures. Net Position represents the difference
between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are fimitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the
District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or
regulations of other governments. The District's policy is to first apply restricted
resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted
and unrestricted net positions are available.

Fund Balance Reserves

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Non-Spendable - includes amounts that cannot be spend because they are
either not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.
The District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve, Unemployment,
Student Activities, and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund Balance.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves (Continued)

Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of ducation

Assigned - includes amount that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance.
Under the District's policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances and amounts
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned — is the residual classification for the general fund.  This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds
and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes
within the general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a
positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted,
committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a
negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposed for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resuiting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.
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NOTE 1:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions (Continued)

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants,
entitiements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
property taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned.
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year
in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements
include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are
required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted;, matching
requirements, in which the District must provide local resources to be used for a
specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be
recognized. Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are
considered both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes
available as an advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise
funds are charges to customers for sales of food service, and other enterprise
funds. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expense and depreciation on capital assets. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

Allocation of indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are aliocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation
expense that could not be attributed to a specific function is considered an
indirect expense and is reported separately in the Statement of Activities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expendituresfexpenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the District-Wide Financial Statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (‘PERS”) and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
("TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reporied at fair value.

in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, the year end Net pension
liability is not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and
expenditures are reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be
liquidated with available financial resources for required pension contributions.
Expenditures for PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of
New Jersey due April 1% of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the
District's behalf by the State of New Jersey. The Governmental Fund Financial
Statements reflects both a revenue and expenses for this pension contribution.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts from
refunding debt and deferred amounts related to pensions. In addition to liabilities,
the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one item that qualifies in this
category, deferred amounts related to pensions.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2022, the District has implemented
GASB Statement 87, Leases. GASB Statement 87 establishes criteria for
accounting and financial reporting for leases. It creates a single model for lease
accounting and requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for
leases that were previously classified as operating leases. A Lessee is required
to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right to use asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, certificates of
deposits, deposits in the New Jersey Cash Management Fund, deposits in the
governmental money market fund, deposits in the New Jersey Asset and Rebate
Management Program and short term investments with original maturities of
three months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments are stated at
cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All
collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking
Institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System, and has capital
funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under (GUDPA), if a public depository
fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the deposits to the
governmental unit.

The Rahway School District had the following cash and cash equivalents at June
30, 2022:

Fund Type Amount

Cash in Bank:

Governmental Funds § 56,151,372.80

Proprietary Funds 800,790.45

Total Cash in Bank 56,952,163.25

Less: Reconciling

items (2,079,730.04)
$ 54,872.433.21

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not
have a specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies
that adhere to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2022, based upon the
coverage provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was
exposed to custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank,
$500,000.00 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $56,452,163.25
was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA.
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits {Continued)

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.8.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1.

Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company
Act of 1940,” 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with
17 C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is fimited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds
are also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has
issued in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a
maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase,
provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent
on any index or other external factor;

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:20-37. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

50



NOTE 2:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments (Continued)

7. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4); or
8. Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if.
a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;
b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party,
c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;
d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public
depository as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-
41); and
e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and

security of collateral is executed.
At June 30, 2022, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 and its
existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed to credit risks,
custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and interest rate risks for its
investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency risks for its deposits and
investments.
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NOTE3:  CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Ending
(As Restated} Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activiies:
Capital assets fhat are not depreciated
Land 3 1,546.445.00 $ $ $ 1,546,445.00
Conslruction in progress 290,968.00 4, 188,460.96 (290,968.00) 4,188,460.96
Total capital assets that are not depreciated 1,837,413.00 4,186,460.96 {290,968.00) 5,734,805.96
Capital assets being depreciated
Building and Building Improvements 77,964,894.00 2,558.00 290,968.00 78,258,420.00
Machinery and Equipment 5,433,375.00 313,024.25 5,746,390.25
Total capital assets being depreciated £83,398,269.00 315,582.25 290,968.00 84,004,819.25
Less accurmulated depreciation for:
Building and Building mprovements (32,485,345.00) {2,140,755.00) {34,626,100.00)
Machinery and Equipment {2,475,058.00) {440,059.00 (2,915,117.00)
Total accumulated depreciation {34,960,403.00) (2,580.814.00) {37,541,217.00)
Total capitat assefs being depreciated, net 48,437,866.00 {2,265,231.75) 290,968.00 46,463,602.25
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 50,275279.00 § 192322921 % $  52,198,508.21
Business-Type Activifies:
Machinery and Equipment $ 607,468.00 § 7061200 § $ 678,080.00
Less: accumulated depreciation {342,872.00) (34,648.00) {377,520.00)
Total capital assets being depreciated $ 264,596.00 $ 35,964.00 $ $ 300,560.00
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NOTE3:  CHANGE IN CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as foliows:

Depreciation expense for the governmental fund was charged to functional

expenses areas of the District as follows:

Instruction:
Regular
Special Education
Other
Support Senvices:
Student and instruction related
General administration
School administration
Plant operations and maintenance
Student transportation
Unaliccated
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33,616.00
14,093.00
35,922.00

14,324.00
130,246.00
31,448.00
48,150.00
4,250.00
2,268,764.00

2,580,814.00




NOTE 4:

Bonds Payable
Unamortized Premium on Bonds

City of Rahway School District

Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term

obligations for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Cbligations Under Instaliment

Purchases
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2021 Net Change June 30, 2022 One Year
$12,015,000.00 $37,404,000.00 $49,419,000.00 $1,330,000.00

1,035,106.00 (244,115.00) 790,991.00 244 115.00

228,539.00 {228,539.00)
1,614,046.00 207,810.50 1,821,856.50
11,101,727.00 (2,937,649.00) 8,164,078.00

$25,994 418.00

$34,201,507.50

$60,195,925.50 $1,674,115.00

Under New Jersey Statutes the District may incur debt in an amount not to
exceed 4% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.A,

18A:24-19 would be as follows:

Year
2021
2020
2019

Average equalized valuation of property

School borrowing margin (4% of above)
Net debt applicable to limit June 30, 2022

School borrowing power available
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Equalized Valuation
of Real Property

$3,180,209,841
2,922,453,287
2,965 790,303

$3,022,817.810
$120.912.712
$49.419.000
$71.493712




City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30,

2022, including interest payments, are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 1,330,000.00 $ 136069292 $ 2,690,692.92
2024 2,589,000.00 1,227,215.00 3,816,215.00
2025 2,570,000.00 1,149,075.00 3,719,075.00
2028 2,580,000.00 1,058,075.00 3,638,075.00
2027 2,585,000.00 966,575.00 3,551,575.00
2028-2032 12,815,000.00 3,619,975.00 16,334,975.00
2033-2037 12,500,000.00 2,017,812.50 14,517,812.50
2038-2042 12,450,000.00 684,000.00 13,134,000.00

49,419,000.00 $

11,983,42042 § 61,402420.42
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by
either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered
by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the
State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be
assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The
Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial
statements and required supplementary information for the Public Employees
Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports
may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box
295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers
or members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners,
and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public_Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED)
Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2013, P.L. 2012, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2013, P.L. 2012, ¢. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS,
hired on or after June 28, 2013, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New
members will be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legisfation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liabifity payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS
are set by N.J.S.A 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All
benefits vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare
benefits that vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Reguirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A
and N.J.S.A. 1866, and requires contributions by active members and
contributing employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be
amended by State of New Jersey legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2012, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7
years beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's
effective date for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e., the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS

Year Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
June 30, Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
2022 $807,081.00 100.00% $807,081.00
2021 744,738.00 100.00% 744,738.00
2020 691,396.00 100.00% 691,396.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020, the State of New
Jersey contributed $12,128,515.00, $8,604,266.00, and $6,317,473.00
respectively, excluding post-retirement medical and long-term disability, to the
TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.

in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A.66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the
District $2,440,701.89, $2,321,068.00, and $2,325,059.00, during the years
ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectively, for the employer’s share of
social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base
salaries.
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NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a liability of $8,164,078.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2020, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's
proportion was 0.0689155340 percent, which was an increase of 0.0008376239
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension benefit of
$1,138,191.00 in the district-wide financial statements. This pension benefit was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.

At June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $ 128,75800 % 58,445.00
Changes of assumptions 42.518.00 2,906,465.00
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments 2,150,633.00
Changes in proportion 259,317.00 595,864.00
District contributions subsequent ot the measurement date 895,255.00

$ 1,325848.00 $& 5,711,407.00

The $895,255.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e., for the school year ending June 30, 2022, the plan measurement date is
June 30, 2021) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2023.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System {PERS) {Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount

2022 $ (1,993,676.40)

2023 (1,442,730.40)
2024 (1,005,112.40)
2025 (772,258.40)
2026 (67,036.40)

$ (5,280,814.00)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2021. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

infiation rate:

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 2.00%-6.00% Based on
Year of Service
Thereafter 3.00%-7.00% Based on
Years of Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based
on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment
for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2020.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASE 68
{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivaients 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the
nonemployer contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially
determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially
determined contributions for the local employers.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Discount Rate (Continued)

Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in _the
Discount Rate

The foliowing presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District's proportionate share
of the pension liability $ 11,11781900 $ 8,164,078.00 $ 5657,411.00

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0285 by
visiting http.//www.state nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension fiability or
deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:
Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $ 139,644,063

$ 139,644,063

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2021, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was 0.2904701309% which was an increase of 0.0075175733 percent from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $3,285,886.00 in the government-wide financial statements
for contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was
based on the pension plans June 30, 2021 measurement date.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2021. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate;

Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% Based
on Years of Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% Based
on Years of Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2021) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of
Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2021 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assetfs Class Allocation Rate of Returmn
U.8. Equity 27.00% 8.09%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.71%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.96%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.30%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.15%
Real Estate 8.00% 7.40%
High Yield 2.00% 3.75%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.60%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 1.68%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 0.95%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.35%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2021. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be based
on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0295 by visiting http://www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions
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BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS — GASB 75

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement
No. 75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According
to N.JS.A 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to
employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years
or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of
the following plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement
System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78,
P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the
premium for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the
retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 213,801
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 150,427

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 364,328
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Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with
the District at June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 151,070,091

$151,070,091

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2021 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2021.

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $9,801,170 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2021 measurement date. At June 30,
2021, the District's proportion was 0.2517513826 percent, which was an increase
of 0.0018452295 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. The State, a
nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to
make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS, TPAF/ABP and
PFRS participants. The District's proportionate share percentage determined
under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero percent.
Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective Non-
Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability that was associated with the District as of
June 30, 2021 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021.The actuarial assumptions vary for
each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in.
This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2021

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
Inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%"
Thereafter 2.75-5.65%" 3.00-7.00%*  Not Applicable

*. Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Heailthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP)," General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS)} classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2021 for current disables retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the
Pub-2010 “"Safety" (PFRS), "General' (PERS), and "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP)
classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on
the results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015— June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.
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Actuarial Assumptions and Other Input (Continued)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the frend rate is initially 5.65% and decreases
to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits,
the actual fully insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2022
through 2023 are reflected. For PPO the trend is initially 5.74% in fiscal year
2024, increasing to 12.93% in fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.50% after 11
years. For HMO the trend is initially 6.01% in fiscal year 2024, increasing to
15.23% in fiscal year 2025 and decreases to 4.5% after 11 years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 6.75% and decreases to a
4.50% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 was 2.16% and 2.21%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding The Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2020 to
June 30, 2021.

Balance at 6/30/20 $169,461,269
Changes for the year:
Service cost $8,280,031
interest 3,918,917
Changes of Benefit Terms (160,795)
Differences between expected
and actual experience (27,591,551)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 149,042
Membership Contributions 100,187
Benefit payments - Net (3,087,009)
Net changes (18,391,178)
Balance at 6/30/21 $151,070,091
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Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.16%) Rate (2.16%) Increase {3.16%)

State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $180,958,253 $151,070,091 $127,534,957

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Heaithcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as
disclosed above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2021

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease . Trend Rate ; Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $122,291,729 $151,070,091 $189,717,304
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OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2021, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Quthiow of Inflow of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 22,773,145 % 45,338,820

Changes of assumptions 25,627,125 16,208,413
Changes in proportion 4,947,573 302,221

$ 53,347,843 § 61,849,454

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State’s proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense
as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount

2022 ($2,047,394)
2023 ($2,047,394)
2024 ($2,047,394)
2025 ($2,047,394)
2026 ($1,187,155)
Total Thereafter $875,118

($8,501,611)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

72



NOTE 7:

NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

ACCOUNTING AND _ FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information
The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available
reports on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on
their website at hitp://www. state.nj. us/ireasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessments or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board's financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The Board receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2021-
2022 fiscal year were subject to the U.S. OMB Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and
expenditures be audited in conjunction with the Board's annual audit.  Findings
and questioned costs, if any, relative to federal awards and state financial
assistance programs will be discussed in the Single Audit Section, Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and cost reimbursements
are subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors. Further, the
School Child Nutrition Program is a recipient of federal reimbursements and is
subject to certain related federal regulations. These federal reimbursements are
subject to subsequent audit and interpretation by the New Jersey Department of
Education. The Board management does not believe such an audit would result
in material amounts of disallowed costs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past three
fiscal years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method.” Under this plan, the District is required fo
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. Charges are applied to the
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable first, and any remaining charges
are applied to the Unemployment Compensation budget appropriation. The
following table is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the combined ending balance
of the District's Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable and
Unemployment Restricted Fund Balance for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal Year Employee
Ending Contributions Amount Ending
June 30, and Interest Reimbursed Balance
2021-22 $ 145.08 3 $ 333,487.08
2020-21 61,127.00 162,510.00 333,342.00
2019-20 65,906.00 45,154.00 434,051.00

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund - Of the $15,901,219.47 in General Fund Balance at June 30,
2022, $558,249.58 has been assigned for encumbrances; $9,261,757.08 has
been restricted in the Capital Reserve Account; $875,668 has been restricted in
the Maintenance Reserve Account; $1,800,000.00 has been restricted as excess
surplus - subsequent years' expenditures; $1,800,000.00 has been restricted as
excess surplus resulting from current year operations; $15,099.00 has been
restricted for FFCRA/SEMI, $333,342.00 has been restricted for unemployment
reserve; and $1,257,103.81 is unassigned.
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COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services ailready rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick ieave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2022,
a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position of $1,821,857.00.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2022, no liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary fund.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢73 (81701),
the Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to
the New Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996
(CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restricted General Fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund bhalance in their subsequent years’ budget.
The excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June 30, 2022 is
$1,800,000.00.

General Fund Expenditures

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022 $88,759,930.20
Increase:
Transfer from General Fund to SRF for PreK-Inclusion 389,480.00
Less:
On-Behalf TPAF Pension, PRM, LTD, _

and Social Security Reimbursement 17.407.390.00
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures $71,742,020.31
Excess Surplus Percentage 4.00%
4% of Adjusted 2021-22 General Fund Expenditures $2,869,680.81
Add: Allowable Adjustments 1,368,884.00
Maximum Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balance $4,238,564.81
Total Unassigned/Unrestricted Fund Balance 6,038,564.81
Excess Surplus $1,800,000.00

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was originally established by the Rahway School
District for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in
subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the
general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget. The
balance remaining in the reserve as of June 30, 2022 is $9,261,757.08.
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CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT {CONTINUED)

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district's approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital
reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for
taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in
the account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted
capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 fiscal year
is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021 $4,908,560.00
increased(Decreased) by:

Board Approved Transfers 4,355,197.08
Ending balance, June 30, 2022 $9,261,757.08

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-13, a Maintenance reserve account was
established by the District. The Maintenance reserve account is maintained in
the general fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the maintenance reserve account and
appropriate into the required maintenance account lines at budget time or any
time during the year for use on required maintenance activities for a school
facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan pursuant to N.J.A.C.
B6A:26A-4.
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MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT {CONTINUED)

The district board of education shall ensure that the maintenance reserve
account balance does not, at any time, exceed four percent of the replacement
cost of the school district's school facilities for the current year. If the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the district board of education shall
reserve and designate such excess in the subsequent year’s budget.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 fiscal
year is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2021
and June 30, 2022 $875,668.00

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balances sheet at June 30,
2022:

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $200,000.00 $390,662.56
Special Revenue Fund 390,662.56
Capital Projects Fund 204,755.55
Debt Service Fund 4,755.55

$595,418.11 $595,418.11

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

INVENTORY
Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Food, Commodities and Supplies 27 7
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NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District
does not have any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary
relationship exists between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the
plan assets are not included in the District's financial statements as of June 30,
2022.

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION

The District has a deficit fund balance of $10,883.58 in the Special Revenue
Fund as of June 30, 2022 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual
basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid
payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record
the last state aid payment as revenue, in the current budget year. The statute
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the
current budget year.

For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition (revenue, expenditures, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, ie., if
one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability.

Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal
year, the school district cannot recognize the last two state aid payments on the
GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to
the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the fund balance
deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds do not alone indicate that the
District is facing financial difficulties. Pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97, any negative
unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is reported as a direct resuit
from the delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of
corrective action. The District's deficit in the GAAP funds' statements does not
exceed the last state aid payment.
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City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

NOTE 20: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS/RESTATEMENTS

For their net position as of June 30, 2021, the District had a restatement for
previously reported capital assets. The District restated their net position to
appropriately reflect the June 30, 2021 balance as follows:

Governmenta!
Activities
Net Position 06/30/21 $26,374,871.00
Adjustments.
Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,374,737.16
Net Position 06/30/21 (As restated) $32,749,608.16

NOTE 21: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the
financia! statement date through March 3, 2023 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

82




83

L9°BES'RE0'6L $ I96YP9SE 6 $ 00L16'4ZE6L g $ 00LLG°IZE'GL 3 sanushial (10}
22vs0'G $ gzoew'ell $ 009:4°89) $ $ 00924891 g $20UN0Ss LIS - {BJ0 )
ZZT¥50'G $ zzoggell $ 009289l $ $ 009.2891 3 juBWIBSINGUIIS) DIEJIPSIN IINTS
[SOUN0S 1BIOPD4
68'CAZ 9LL'EL $ BB6ZL'8E68Y $ 009sR'LYL'0E $ $ DG'958'L9L'0E % $82Jn0s SiB)S - 210 )
68 L0LOYY E 68°1L0L°0VP'E {parebpng-uou) Juod AUNoBS |BI20S 4yd ] PasSINqUIEY
0oZor'y oo'Zor'y {pa1abpng-uou) esueinsur Ajjigesip uuakBuol 4vdl JIBYSa-uo
00°LLL'eeR’Z 00°414'€E8'E (payaBpng-uou) SUCHNGLIUDD WG Jyd L JIBYaq-ug
00'6Ls'8ZL'Zl 00'G15'82LZL (ps1abpng-uou) suolnguUucy uoisuad 4ydl JBUSG-UQ
00°09G L1 007095 LY woneyodsuei] 4N
DO¥ZE LZE L 00vZE 12E' L ple Aeupicexag
00'POE ZE0'L 00'P9E'ZE0’L 00'¥9£'ZE0 pte Ajunoes jesuobaies
00'9Z9°6V6'52 00°929'6V6'62 00'929'6P6'5E pie uoyez||enb3
00°GPP'EoZ'Z 00'syr'eez'e 00'GHy'E92'e ple uopesnps [epads [eouobeie)
$ 001ZF'9L6 $ o0Zvels $ $ 00Levy'9le $ pie uoneuodsues eanobale)
'SEIN0S RIS
95°018'4¥T %  9GBBp'vrZ Gy $ 006.2966vY g $ 006.8'966'pY $ §30/N0S [BIO[-SBNUBASL [BIO ]
(ogool) 00001 00'C0L angsal (eyded uo pauses jsaseul
(og'001) 00004 0000t aMasal AcushilBwD Uo pauies 15929
06965 05969 1SaeUl JuswAoidwaun -SanudAd) SNOSUER||DISIW PaJOINSEY
95°09¢'LZ2 95092’ L2y 00000002 00°000'00Z sanuaAz) SNOSUBKBOSIW PajdUlsSaIUN
05'€56'6) 05'€56'61 S121S U} UIYIM S,BD] JSUI0 LIOY UOIN |
$ 006/9'96L%Y $ 00'6/9'96L%F g $ 00BL9'98. VY $ An®)| xe} (8007
:8801N0S (2907
SINNIATH
TWNLOV OL TvNId WALOY L£30and SINIWONINY 1390nd
FONYIHVA I¥Nid ONY SHIAASNYHL TENIDO
139ang
2202 0¢ INDT GIAND Hv=A IWOSId
ONMNA TVHINTD
JINUIHDS NOSIHYINOD AYVY.L3D0n4g
111510 TOOMIS AVMHYH 40 ALID
Lt LITHS

w0 LIGIHXE



9.'6£Z' 2} $ ZEVL005L $ 80¥LEZIL $ B09LEBE $ 0DOBGEEZL $ sailigesip sdimu (B30,

00'000'} 00005t 00°005'2 {oogLe) 00€18'2 spoe(qo Jayio
vLZ0L'L 920182 00CIE'Y (00" 289} 00'000's seyddns |erausn
20856 90°L08'GEE 80 ¥¥8'YrE 80'61€'8E 00°625'90¢ UODRJISU] 10} SBLIEIES JBLIO
$ 0026901 $  00L590LF $ 004652 $  00°090'80¥ $ siayoEs) jO SPLBRS

saij(Iges!p sidymy

2L0LG'LE $ 8Z'SI5'59¥ $ 00960'/6% $ $ 00'960'LBP 3 sanilges|p jeiomeyaq elo L
L Pr0's 18718 00'668'0 00'658'9 sai|ddns jeseuan
6290481 LO'EP0'66 00064231 {oo-gzg) 00'GL0'SLL UOIINISUL JO) SSUE(ES JBLID
00'028'9 $  00'/99'69¢ § o00Z/8b'ziE $ oosee $ 00Z9i'2lE $ siayoeal Jo saueles

SoIlGESI(] [RIoIABLSY

L9GLLPE § CERES'BEE $ 00¥GY'EeE % (00'8¥5'92) $ 00°20Z'0st $ senigesip abenBue| jo/pue Buluies) [ejog
£L18¢8'G AT 00°000°4 00'000°2 sa||ddns (elaueD
¥6L2l'81 S0'620'6. 00'EsL' 16 {0o'8v5'92) 00°L08'v2L UoIINASLE 10} s3tieles 18yl
$ o0'L06'RLZ $ 00 L06'BLZ 3 $ 00'L06'8LE S siayoesl Jo saURjEg

souiqesip sBenbugy so/pue Buiniea

LWL L66 $ SLL9B'SYL'SL $ GLGELErLOZ $ (02'299'958) $ 00'80L'REY'0Z $ uoponasul - swesboud semnbas ejo )
¥1'88g'ge 98'.28'p8 00961411 {0o'000'92) 00961 'cL sjo3lgo 180
B80S LT 11'988'c¥L 00288841 00599221 SHOOQIXSL
80'16C LYE 82°PE0'679 96°'6Z¢ 066 (00-90i'gl) 00°G10'G64 saiddns jeiauagy
0gzog'og 0T I8E'6LE 00°005'86¢€ 00°'006'66€ (seltes 0OS-00%) seoKuas paseydind JBYI0
00°0%0'¢C 00°05Y 00°005'ce 0000522 SIAISS UOIEINPS [RUOISS0I paseyding
sl'e Y vLi8'10E 2698108 LG 1ZY'y 00'5G¥ L62 uolaNASUL 10| SBlkees Jai(y
LG ELS 6¥ 168'0Z 00'L16°02 (0o'g12'y) 0082 'eT SI0IISS LOREINPS |eUCISSEj0Id PaSBYDIN
Q0 v 00°Z48'9¢ CO9Le'LE oogLe’gt 00°000'5E siayaes) Jo saleleg
££°289'60¢ 86°008°189'G LE'€85'/86°G {p9'sS¥'08)) 002£0'891'9 Sloyoea) Jo saleles Z1-§ SepRID
L ELE PG 64691551V Z67169'508'Y (80'529°tL) oo21e'vze'y Siayoes] JO SOLBIES 8-g SAPRID
Qe ves', o Lor'ZI9'e 09'5L0'0299 (ot'999'9¢p) 00'289'960'L $1840Ee] JO SBLRIES G-| SIPRID
g1'48e's2 $ 2Z'SB9'BELL $  ObZ80'69L'L $  09'999'901 $  009LP'8S0’L g s/eyces) o sauees - uapebiopury

woilonasul - swesboid tenbay
HSNIAAXE LNIHHNO
‘SFUNLIANIdX3
IWYNLOV OL ToNId IVOLDY 139ang SININANINY laaand
FONYTEYA wNId ONY SHI4SNVHL AYNIDIHO
13snang

¢¢0Z "0€ ANNT Q30N dvaA TWOSId
ANNA IVHINDD
TINAIHOS NOSIHYdINOD AMY139AaNg
TORHLSIA TOOHDS AVAMHYY dO ALID

c# L33HS
wb-0u LISIHXZ3

84



£0'PSE'06L 16'819'8l2'1 00'S/6'89E°L 00 LLF'L $ 00'Z296'49¢€'L
000021 00002 L 00'00Z'1
LE'16E'G 69'809'¢ 00°000'6 000006
82°05L'€9 z.'880'681L 00'8L2'8VE (00'888'82) 00 L50' 222
PP ZE9'08 95'L26'620°tL 00'FGS'0LL'L 00'6¥2'0¢ $  00°508'080'%
95°L1Z 202 PP PEE OF ) 00'965'L¥E (0000’3 L) $ 0096585t
9L ZVL'E $9°/GL 00°006'¢ 00°005'E
02'69¥'v0Z 08'929'6EL 00°960'¥ire (000003 1L} $ 00'960'G5Y
00'2IS'Y 00'Z0G'EL 00°720'8L 00 vI0'EZ $ 0000065
000042 00'00L'Z {o000g’ L) 600000t
0028’ ) 00'Z05'¢L 00'¥ZE'SL 00'¥Z£'08 $ 00000'SY
PO L96'95 | 96'205'L2L 00 ¥9¥' 28 (ooves'ze) $ 00986906
q8'8Ty G102 00°006°L 00°005 00°000'2
£1°56.'68 £8'Z9v'02Z 00'852'0iE {oo'yzo'ez) 00Z8z'ees
20°L8L'99 $6'896 661 00°90L4'996 $  00'90.'99G
09'65L° 19 02291'8L9 00'Z06'644 00 Liy'8e) $ 00'¢lLe'g08
2878901 £9168'LZ 00'o00'ce (60 000'22) 00'000'05
£GGEY GO TR R TA AN 00°292'g62 00°090'61L 00°202'8.2
06°G£Z'66 0L P0F'€9E 00°0v9'85t o' LL¥02) $ 00 LLL'BiY
GZ'LL8'vFL 22'GBZ'9L0'Y 21 /91122 ZL LIV LY $ 00069til'y
00055t 00°000'L 000852 000652
GLUIELE G2'86Y'0L 00 L6521 (00°£00'S) 00'009'LE
Gepee'ez £T'GSP VY 86'680'9.Y 8518618 0D E0S B0
GL6YG'ZLL 6£718€'219'E PG OEB'BZLE oy L0161} § oogeoshLE
F91L0V OL TvNid TeLOV i155ang SINIWAONINY 135ang
JONVIHYA NI ANV SHIJSNYHL TVYNIDIHO
13nang
Z¢0c 0F ANNT GIaNd Yv3A TvOSsid
AR EERER]
FINGIHIS NOSHYANOD AGV13Dang
I5M1SIG 100HIS AVMHYY JO ALID
E# 133HS

«1-0u LIGIHX3

UONONASE - Loeanps [enbullig jejo )
SyooqXaL
sayddns |erausg
UOIONJISU| JO) SILIRIBS 18YI0
SIBYIED] JO $BLBIES

UGHONASUL - UOREDONPS ienBuig

UORDMASUL - [2IDSLURL fSHINS DISEY 18101
sa|ddns [R1auas)
siayoee) Jo saLeeS

UOONJISU) - [RIpaWS /SIS 2lseg

UONDNIISU SLUOY (8101
SE0IAIDS LONEBINPS (BU0ISSS0.d PasBYDIng
SI8YoEa) JO SOLERS

UONONIISU BLUOH

au) {Iny - sangesip jooyosaid (elot
saiiddns jgusuan
uoponNsy| Jo] saUelES 1BUID
SIDYOEA] JO SAUBES

auy Hny - salifges(p jooyosald

wspne |ejo}
sanddns |eiausd)
LOR3NASUL 10 SBLBIES JBUIO
$J9L0ER) JO SALEES

wsnny

J81uad a2inosal JILUoOE B2IN0Sa) |BJ0 |
SHO0QKE ),
sa||ddns [eiauen
LOROMASUL 10f SBLEJES JAUID
sisyoesl Jo SaURRS

18)USD 821N0sa8) JUICO) 82IN05aY

85



9y ETr LT v52L0'821 00°102'954 $ 00 L0Z'95| $
ZeesL's 21°9v6 00001y 00°00L't
yO'GH6' L1 98'¥50°Z 00°000'0Z 00°000'02
00'882°L 00'96Y'S 00'¥ag L 00'p2'L
00’986t 007182021 00°2LL8'¥EL 00'£18'vZL
60 78907 16°022'588 00'S06'506 $ 00'S06'S06 $
00°'000'91 00°000°0L 00°000'9:
60 ¥89't LESLE'LL 00°000°'8) 00°000'91

00°'S06'€L8 00'508'c48 00°506'S48
86°206'CL L#9Z0'02 00'VE6'EE $ 00PEB'EE $
85°€85°) ly'99g'z 00°05Y'tr 0005ty
oopEeZL 000012t 00'¥a¥'se 00 vaY'sZ
00°688'09 00'0v6'22 00'628'88 $ poseees
00°'888'09 00°0v6 L2 00'628'88 00'628'38
ZEEPR0ZL o' CBG 599 Ov 9Er'¥RL {09'6L0'B) $ 0021576 $
5 0L0'S £6°686'9¢ 00°000°Zt 000002y
G6°0VG'9Z SO'85G'PEL 00'001°191 {00 000'08) 00'COL LB
04'996°28 06°9£5'29 00'£0Z°5¥L 00'$0Z'SP1
Ov'6ZL'S 00°'801'62Y OF'eeL oy ovv261Z $  Q0B0ZViv $
62'952'681 L€ 1224 48T 09'L/6'9L6 (Or'¥26'L2) $ 00'Z08'88S g
00000 00000’ 00°000'e
$6'ZPT V2 S0°LGZ'LL 000085 00°005'6E
L6'¥08'2E 60'6S LY 00068 vL 006 '05E'%2
OLvEE' LY 0£°455'26 00'Z68'¢EL 00'268'EEL
£4'€28'28 L8 LOEEPZ 09'GEZ'0EE (ov'¥E6'1E) $  0009L'25¢ S

TWNIOY O1 WNi3 WNLOV 13vand SINIWONINY 1354nd
JONVIHVA “ToNIS ONY SHI4SNYHL IVNIDIHO
13anang
2¢0¢ 0% INTY O30NT gvaA WSl
ONM4 TYO3aNTD
FINa3H0S NOSIHYANOD AHYL3OUNg
151HITI0 100HDS AVAMHMYY 30 ALID
R EERT]

wbOu LIGIHX3

aninues woddns -swelboid vopeSnRpL aAlBWSYE |Bj0 |

sjo8lqo Jaulo

sjeuajeW pue sayddng

{sau9s 00S-001) Sevnas paseyomd BUID
sauees

ao1Mes poddns - suieiBold uoesnpg sAgELI)Y

uononsu -swelbold uoyesnpa aaELLBYE |BI0 L
sSHoomxe |
saiddns |essusn)
s38yoea] JO $alees

UONDNIISU - Swelboly UoNEINPL SAlJRWIB)Y

UONONISUI - |00HOS JBLILWNS {810 ]
seljddns |giauan
$1aUoBs) JO seuees
UORORASLY - [DOUDS JRLULUNG

uolpnIisul - swelboid jooyos JaYe /ai0J8q (2101
uolaNLSUL JO SaLeES IBYID
uononzsut - swesboid jooyds Jaye feiojeq

uoIIaNNSU - $D1j8[YIe palosuods [ooyss Bjo L

spslgo PWyo

s|euslew pue saiddng

(saues NNS-00C) S90IMBS paseYDINg
saueeg

UOIDNIISUI - SO5B|YIE PRIoSUOdS |00UDS

LOHOMASUE - SDIIB|UIE JENDLUINS0D palosuods [00Y9S [BIo |

(spun4 |21pGISNDY) WOUS(] ISA0Y) O) SIBISURI |
sjoalge 1BUI0

sjeLaew pue salddng

{sel1as 00G-00L) SO21Uas paseyoIng
soLBleg

UORDNIISYS - SOISJUIE JBINDILNGO0D palosunds j00Yos

86



87

69'07.'0L 08'/80'05¢ ¢ S¥'808'029 S¥'80Z'92 $  GO009'v6S $ $30|AIDS Uiesy |Bj0]
00'0LS 00°0LS (o0 0¥} 00'0GL s109[q0 1PUIQ
PO PPE YT 9¢'646'01 00'¥28'Ly 00°068'42 00'vL0'7L sjeualew pue saiddng
91'9.4'9 YZ619'76 00°'96€'101 00°006'95 00961 vt SB2IAIDS {BOILLDS) pUE [BLOISSS;0Id paseydIng
6Z'666'8¢ 0T 646'LEY 3 GrelEaly (557 L0g'89) $ 00082'SES $ saleeg
SSOIAS YledH
00 PP0'T 008927 $ 00/0L'v.2 00 PE0'PZL $ 00¢/9'05t 3 HIOM [BI20S pUE SOUBpUaNE |BJ0]
LrBiv B50.1'S 00086’ 00°0S6'S s|euajew pue sa)|ddng
85'%95°L Ly Z6L 292 $ 00452'892 00 Vo't §  Q0EZLvrL ¢ $alEes
)I0M (21208 PUB S0UBDUIRY
LE0LE' L6} £1PI6'91E'D $ 006828069 00°29Z'091 $ 008LO'BYE'S $ UOING UORONUSUI (210 1
00 ZLE vy 00248 'PY 00°ZLE'tvY SONIE) 2118 - UCIINE
FA AL 89'672'690'y 00'6£Z'990' Y {00'¢E2'66) 00'ZLV'EEL'Y S1B1S |/M PBIgESIP Y} Jof 'yas “Ald 0} uomn L
20°'615' 86 ¥Z¥'ZEL 00°000'5EL 00°000'6EL sjooyos Aep Bas g Aos oads 0D 0} UORINL
00°009'69 00 00t'8% 00°000'81L 0o000'8E) [e12ads - 181P j00Y0S 90A AIUNOD O UOIN L
00°00Z'62 00 +9E' 289 00'¥95'9LL 00 ¥95°6 ) 00'000'269 JeinBas - “18IP [00YDG 00A AWUNED O uofIn
0€°£26'86 0LZ89'ZLE'+ 000G LI L 00'9EY'€ZT 00FIL'88L L [R108ds - 21B1S UIYIM Sy 18410 O} uoling
E'G6Y 2590091 $ 000059 00'005'91 $ $ 1gnBay - 91EIS LIGIM ST 4810 O} uoing
TUOIN] LoRoNAsut
“mmuzu_vcmo_xw pRINGLISIPUN
00'8¥Z'8L $ 0088 $ 008¥e8L $ sa0iuas poddns - 6oud wsu-je jiddns Jauio |e104
00'8Y¥Z'8L $ 00828l $  00'9¥Z'8L $ SJ8YDE3} JO SSRGS
saoinies poddns - sweibold ps anjewislle JoHIO
G0'9/6°E 56'686°0F ) $ 00996'trl $ 00995 vrl $ uononasul - Bosd ysi-ie jiddns sayjo Bjo ]
§0'9/5'E 66'686 Ot L $  00995'vrl $  00995'vrl $ s1ayoea) o salees
uoiponsur -~ seeibord pa aAnelIdle 120
VLDV OL ToNId TYNLOV i3oang SININONINY 135ang
FONVINVYA VNI ANV SHIASNVYL TYNIDIHO
l3oang
220¢ 0% INM OFUNT dvaA oS
ONM4 WaaNTD
FNAIH0S NOSTHYIWNOD Adv1iZoand
ISIE1SI0 TOOHDS AVMHYY J0 ALID
G# 139HS

#-0 LigiHX3



v1Z6¥ L9 9222 668’ 00'942'9986'L 00°2£9'v8 00'6E1 2881
99'g8¢ PELLGLL 0000841 00°000'2 00°006'G1
ZETE6'Y 89'966'6¢ 00'686'tY 00’636 v
LS vy ve A TANA] 00'69.'9Z1 0000524 00'69Z'v5
910 ¥8'Z19'681 00'cL9'egl 00°Z9t's o0'152'z8s
60749248 167 28L'855"L 00'S05°16S'E 00'6.L'9 0005L'V85 'L
LO°0PE'e9 S#'90L'0.6 Z5'Ory'EE0’L (8¥'8.€ L) 00°9Z8'0%0')L
00°08¢'L 00°0F9 DO000'E 00°000°Z
8980502 256918 D0'€A9'6Z 00ci9'6e
00'562°G 00's0L'S 00°060'LL 00°000'LL
IRIGE'EL £1'126'S0L 00'64Z'0L1 (oo 2g1'0L) 00'9Lb'egl
09°06L' 12 s TA AN 00°LL0'PEL Q0'EvL 0o vELEEl
Z1'490'2 OV 05E'8EL S LALY'ORL TGTL0T 00'e0Y'8cL
21 Z5L 882 L6 06Z'ECY'L S0'CPy'188'L £0° 22801 00 1¥0'S9L L
00°000°Z 00000 00°000'2
vz ese'gee 8L 286’082 00°982'60G°L 0000522 00'LLO'BZY L
88°862'LZ GL'BGE'ZPE £0°2G9'69¢E $0°LZZ'9E 06'0EF'€EE
#0'958 L1 96'909'crP'L 00'£95'6/5'L 00004 '8} 00coy'LeS’L
00'GLE 00'G8Y'L 00008t 007008t
PE'GGE 99'prQa'E 0000’z 0000’2
0Le80° LI 0£'€/9'LL8 00°25.'786 00°000'GE 0026 V6
00°Z0zZ'02 00'P0Y'896 00'209'28% {00'006'91) 00°90%'609
IYNLDY OL TYNIF IWNLOY 1349ang SINSDINONINY 1=49ang
TONYIHVA I¥Nid ONY SHIAASNYHL TYNIDIHO
13oand
2¢0¢ 0t INFIF G3aN3 ¥vaA Tvosid
W ERCEERED]
FING3IHIS NOSIHVINGD AYvYLIDang
LORASIO TO0MOS AYMHYY 30 ALID
9# L3S

«bOu LISIHXZ

swea) Apnls Py 12104
sjeuajew pue solddng
(51502 pISa) UBYYO $21I8S 0OG-00Y) Aes Ind DSty
S801ASS |euonEoNpa - j0id paseyng
SJUBISISSE |E2LSI0 PUE [BLEIBI0SS JO SBLEES
Hels [euotssayod Jaylo jo seuees

‘sLIBa) APNIS plIuD

aouepink B0
s309[90 48O
sielJalew pue sayddng
sa0jA18s ‘yos) pue ‘Joud paseyaind BYIO
$S@01JSS [BUGNRINDS - [BUCISSaj0Id paseyding
SIUBLSISSE [EOUS|D PUE |BLBISHOSS JO $IUERS
4e1s |euolssoyoid 1eylo Jo SolelEg

BouepIng)

Bixe pis aas ddns H 1O B0
5199090 J8po
$A0IAISS LOIJEINPA ~ [BUOISST0Id PRSEYDMG
SSLIEES

TBAXS piIs Aas ddns HIO

SOAS peIBiOl 14 10 yoosds jgjo)
spalgo Jauio
sjeusewl pue saiddng
S@AISS UOIEDNPS - JBUOISSR)0d paseydind
saleleg
'SOAS palejal | d L0 yossds

88



ZELLE'8Y 89°ZZY'L 00'008'6¥ (0o 002'8) $ 00°000'8S
00000t 00000+ 00000t
2 116'08 29TV L 00°000'28 00°000°'ZE
00°008'0t 00°008'gl {oo'o0z'e) ¢ 00000'G2
S0'988°CL LO¥F0'SLE 90'0E6'88¢ $ 00162'68¢
1§ LLPEL 6G'G99'YE 90°£80'8¢ 00'¥¥6'se
$G'890 9t LED'R 00°006'8 00005’

00 L¥E'2re 00 L¥E'ZHE $ 00 IvE'TPE
G1'¥85'S6 58°'619'G26 00 P9Z'6L0'L 0099L'2 $ O000L'ZLO'L
81'8va's Z8'LSL'y 00°000°0L 00'000'0L
£O'VYPY'S 26'§58°E 00'005'6 00°005°6
8E0GL'0) 29'€99'LE 008 L2 00°¥95 0005212
Z6'29 80°L69'OY 008549t 00'652 9t
00°00L'pL 00001 ¥} 00°001 71
oL'06L'Z1 8 GhY'EY 00°9£9'6% {00'58¢) 00'120'95
00°'6.9'0P 00'8E1'cL 00 L19'ELE 00'686'9 00'ZE8'90¢
8y Y06y SEEL 'YL 00°'8E9°LbL $ o08Eg' iV

TYNLOV OL T9Nid WNLOVY 135ans SINISWNONTINY 1I58na
IONVIYYA ToNI ONY SHIASNVYL TYNIDINO
13onang
220z 0t 9NNF G3ON- HY3A WS
R GAERCEELNER]
FINOaHIS NOSIHYdNG D ARVISoang
15191510 TOOHDS AVMHYYE 30 ALID
Z#133H8

«+~0u L181HX3

‘aas Burtel; J=1s taisuw B0
spalqo ByIo
(saues oDS-D0Y) SeoMas paseyaind 1BulD
SA0IASS JELONEINPS - Joid PasBUDIng
‘s Bunaed) yeig sy

Aselqy /M9S Blpaus npa Blo]
S|eliglew pue salddng
(005-00F) seopues yound JaWO
sslges

Arelqlf 7 A0S BIpaw np3

‘ALBS (1S4 JO Juawanordulr jB10 ]
syoelgo 1BID
s|eLolEw pue sanddng
(00%-00%) $801A19S yoInd JBWIO
$EIIAISS |BUOCIEINDS - J0id PISBYDING
SaleEs JAYI0
‘JSISSE [BDUSI0 PUE J03S jO (B8
HElS [BUOISSSj0Id JBYI0 JO BS
uolonsul jo Josiuadns Jo 18g
AJBS ISUY JO JdaAoIdUL]

89



ud~0 LIGIHX3

LZ2°982'%31 Ye'ZyL 6.8 £9'821 €69 £9'/68'8Y 00'145'9r9 §
zZre8s'e 8TLLES ooooe'e 00°00E'Z 00°000'9
ELivs'e) 28°2ve've 00'v80'i¥ 00°000'S 00 #80'9E
6°980'9 LG'ECE'99 00°0L0'EL 00 0l0'eL
£6'69v'88 0L'¥95'Z8Y EOPEQ'LLG £9°455'6¢ 00 LL¥'LES $
Gl el8'lze L'990'88E'E 95'6/8'609'C 69'888'8lE 00012 1B6E'E $
Ly P0L 1L £6'GEE'EE 00°00L'GY 00°000° 1L 0o'00L'pE
BEPSLLE Z1'9e8'1e 00'LBS'ES 00°L65'ES
Zl 199'64 GLeviest 28701 1L'V02 (0080%'L) 00°804'502
00'98¢°L6 00'98€'L6 00'98E'L6
YOyYe'sL bO'rL5'8Y9 SO'8LE' YL SO¥LZ's 00 POE'6iL
$9'95¢'s 00218681 POELL LGV POO99'ZLL 00'206'8/€'2 $
62 Z16'€SE LL'G8Z' V0L L 00'86L'85¢E"L 00°520'8L 00€L1'082 L $
L06L't BSB¥L 8T 60°000'0¢ 00°000'0E
£6'L¥Z'e L0'296°E oU¥0Z'9 00°'000°C oUv0Z'Y
00°000'9L 00°000°91 c0'000'9L
00’6t} G080t 00'006t 00°005'L
02°8L2°55 0e'v08 00'E80'9S 00'€80'YT 00°000°2¢
RATA ) 6L'€28'vZY 0oeoe iy 00°690°LE 00'vEC DOV
00°000'c 00000’ 00'000'c
PL°OY0'ZE 98°825'06 00'GL5'2ZL {oo'szr'e) 00000821
LED £9°¢19'ZL 00vigelL 00'vv6 D0'0LY'LL
00'945R'8lL 00°008'58 00°'959'¥01 {00 pv6) 00°009°G0}
Zo's6l'E 86'GY0'LE 00 L¥Z'vE 00 bye'y 00700002
00005 00°009'9 00°D0L'L¥ 60069 00°0i¥'or
¥o'0iL'92 96°688'88 00°000°GL} 00'000'G1 L
lrzee'e £6'659'78E 00'2Z6'£8¢€ 00°29€'s 00'G55'28¢ $
TYNLOV OL TYNI- ALY 1390n8 SINAWNONINY 139dna
JONVIMVA TN ANV SHIASNYHL TTYNIDIHO
1390nd
220¢ 0% INNT G3UNS JvdA Yosid
QNN TYHINED
FNAIHIS NOSRIVJIINOD AHYL300Ngd
1OMMLSIA TOOHOS AVMHMYY 40 ALID
g# 13348

Sa0IAISS [BIIUSD ainypuadxe palguIsipun 1210
sp8fgo BYlo
sieuajew pue sayddng
{s31185 00S-00P) sedInes paseydnd 'ISIN
SBBIES

S90IAIDS [BNJUBD)

UIWPE [00Y3S ‘Aes Woddns 210
sjoeiqo Jayio
sjeusieW pue salddng
{senas 00S-001) Saoes paseyand Jayi0
}E1S 19yULe) 0 JuswiAed DBA pRSNIUN
SHIBISISSE [BOUSD PUB |BUBIDIDSS JO SaUR|Eg
ap Boadysiediound yssessiedpund jo sauees
AHLUPE [00UDS ‘AJeS Joddng

“upIpe ueg) ‘aas Joddns (ejo )
$99} pue sanp diysiequiaw 304
sainjipuadxe snoaue|isosiy
Puisip jooyos jsuebe syuswBpnp
seyddns BueswBuiuiely asnoy-ut 30g
salddng [giaussy
sao1aas paseyind Jaygi0
saopues paseyond Jauio 3049
suoydals) /SUCHEIIUMULLOD
SIOINSS JBDIUYDS] paseydInd
sSa0uues [euoissajoud paseyaund BYIO
saoinies BuuseuiBuseinmosyyory
s8a4 Jipny
saoueg jeba
sauees

Upe ‘uan) "Aes poddng

90



89'841'¢1Z $ _ZE£'688'GLL 00'890'68¢E {00'000'55) 00'G8E LEY
£L2vT'8E 1Z'Z85'eE 00°664'LL 00°005'99
G6'GE6 vl $ soleg'eyl 00°€LZ'LLE (00'000'5%) 00'588'¥SE
ELIVLLLE $ P5SZL'B90'E LEEIZ VP E 66200'L12 00ZZr'LEC'E
00'sLlL 00°5L¥ 000%8 00059
98'600'¥6 ¥1°299'205 00°229'065 00000201 00'ZL9'68Y
0L°6¥E'LE 08¥8.°19E 00'0E0'66€ 00°0C0'SLE 00°DEO'VBE
L9'E86'ES L9BSO'YSL 82€v0'20T (00'000'28) 00'00¢'9€2
0z'L68'C 08'809 007005 00005’
oooLz'eel 00'0LZ'9EL 00°01Z'98L
iS'ieL’e £'80£'0Z1 Q0°0¥¥'ZZ1 00'0vEE
8Z'PEL0L L6V 0ZL 00'¥LE'LEL 00'002'8 00¥1L'828
vZ'02e'9s 9L'648'4L 00-00z'eeH 00°00Z'8Z1
6E6v8'or t9062'92 00'009'€L 00°009°eL
88'90¥'89 $ LL202l98') 66'CL9'GED'L 68°L08'Ct 00'908'ZZ9'L
21966752 $ Zeyor9lel 87'666'€4G' L ZEL09'0LL 00'96v ver'L
0095t 00'vve'y 00'00S'¥ 00°005'y
£9'986'02 ge'Lic'ayl 00°892'L98 00€LLZ 08'001°GE
€L'62E'9LT 4 AN AN L1E59'8Y8 00'000'02 00'Z18'682
0o LDL'eL 00'L0L'e} 0o'LoL'el
Z8'151'9 $ 0S'GZr'eEs 2 LIR'6ES ZEEBL YL 00 P80'S9Y
£8°CL¥'201 $ i8ivevee 0LGLY' 126 0zZ66L ) 00°160'806
00'c00'z 00°000°2 000002
L IpE0L 8. %9519 05ZLLLEL {00°000'02) 00 LPS'EEL
Z6'6£L'6Z 80PSY'YrE 0061 viE 00 Lra'eE 00'2v5°0v2
61985 $ 10°EZB'8lS 02'605'618 {08 L¥t'zL) 00'£56°1ES
IVNLOY OLvNid IYNLOYV 135an9 S.LNINONIINY id9dng
SONVIHYA TYNID ONV SHAASNVAL TYNIDHEHO
i3odang
220¢ 0E INNM G3aND ¥Y3A WOSHd
UNMH ivddINID
F1NAIHIS NOSIHVIINOD Adv.LIodng
I3MELESIOTO0HIS AYMKHYY 40 ALID
G# 1949HS

Wb, LIGIHX3

% spunoib jo dasydn pue aued [Bjo |

soyddns |[eiauany

¢ $201ASS BdusUBIUIRW pue Jiedas 'Buiuesn

'spunolb jo deaydn pue aien

$ SSOIAISS [BIPOISND [BIO L

siaslgo o

(Apauoana) ABieug

(sef jeinjeu) ABsaug

solddns jzisuan)

$2013S paseynind SnoauBlEISHA

FOUBINSU|

saopues Apaedoid pesyedind layin

wuBe ind asea| uey) Jeylo Bpig ' PUBR PUB (EluSY

sa0iMas souBUUIBW pue siedal ‘Builes)n

SBNAISS |EDILYDD) PUB |BUCISSaI0)d paseydINd

g SOUBES
1$901M98 [BIPOISND)

$ "B} YOS 10j Juiew paxnbal gjo}
sslqo Jeyio
sanddns [eisuacy
$831M8s SoUBUSUIRW pue ‘stedal ‘Buuesi)
$§e1s 194/ust 01 wewAed oea pasnun
¢ saleleg
oBY YOS Q) JUTBLL paNnDEY

[y ABojouyas) oJut ULIPE {B10 ]
spaigo LYo
sjeusiewl pue sayddng
(sauas Q0G-00%) Seowes peseydind Jayl0
% saueEes
:ABOIOUYD9) ojul LRUDY

91



LE0L'ELE 92786211 0L $ A9°680'Z6L01 {00'89¢°LZ6) $ 00Z08'969 L g
5 1¥REE 9r'851'91Lg 00000052 00'000'05Z
a0ZLOLL 08'/82' VS 96°6F2 855 {r00sZ'0L) 00006829
LLG16'S5 06'9€2'66 19169151 00°000'6E1
0L68%'LILZ 0£°204'6.8"L 004611662 (00 282'026) 00'+86'195'8
LG Z68'0% 69'726'G1y 0¥’ §1L8'95F {09'889'c8) 00'¥05'OrS
LO'2G6'61 £6'1¥0'08 00700008 00°000'08

Z6°e5'928 Z6'E51'828 (80002'2) 00'7L8°0E8
9£0 9¢ /L1468 $ zLLLl'Glg zlireees $ 0000005 $
££'08E'692 ZTBLLSPT'S $ GGEYr VLSS 55652 7oLl $ 0OSO0'SHEY g
00046 00'068'L 0070082 000083 00000t
6TGiYL L PES'Y 00'000'9 00°000'9
007054 0005Z'6 00°000'GL 00°000°0)
6681602 LO'8.L'B9FE 00 L6106t 00'00¥' 260"t 00°152'Z682
$0°922'0G 967621 00°002'861 {00 pog’1L) 00°000°002
ov'960'22 09'806'PE0 00°'500' 259 00't8F'G DO 965’979
£8095'2y LLHEQ L9) 00'S6L'0LE 00°000°0E 00661061
Z6'¥8Y 10l 20°609'209 0060 POL 009118l 00'8.6'589
or'zZee'l 09Lil'E 00°000'¢ (000007} 00°000'6
GLER0'LL G2'916'6 00000 E 00'000'L2
SO608 LE GE06Y'ELL 00'000'5Zt 00°000'sZ L
00°052°L 00052 00'000'2 00°000'2
00 LLY'E 00'BRG'T 00'000°G 00°000's

0682002 0562002 056.0'€ 00°000'L)
peo 16'€96'62 LZ¥96'62 LZ'5ZT'8 0068412
9eLgl) eLL T $  YBYGELE #8566l § 0000021 $
¥9°98v'59 8664V GLG $ 29995086 (8 112'99) $ 00'8.1'6E9 $
0Z'066'2 08'600°2 00°000'¢ 00°000'S
CLEEY 1L §2°098 00'05E'ZL (00°'059) 00°CO0EL
Z4'900°LG 06'609'ZLS $ 29'9.9'cag {gg"195'28) $ 0081129 $

FYALOY OL VNI LIV 1390N8 SINJWAONIAY 13a5ang
ADINYIHYA TyNId ANV SHAASNYYL “WNIDTHO
1asang
2202 Ot ANOF G3GN3 dv3A 1v05Hd
ONME VHaNgD
FNazHDs NOSIHVYANDD AdvLIoang
IDHISIA TOOMDS AVMHYY J40 ALID
DiF [33HS

w00 LIGIHXE

Sjjausq pajedoiEUn {810 ]
HEYS 19)LLIL] O Juswhed YOIS pesnun
slyyaueg aafoidule 1O
JUBLISSINGLLIS LUOIHN },

Sjyeuaqg yiesH

LUOIESUAdIIOD § UBLLIOAN
IemnBag - SUOINGIILGCD JUSLURINSL IS
SrTd - SUDIINQUIICD JuBwaalal ISYID
SuoINQLILEY AlliNoas [BID0S

‘SHjalag pajesoleun

MBS SUBJ] IUSDNIS (210
sainppuadxa snosusaosIy
sal|ddns vollepodsue |
uoeyodsuel] - @3aes paseydind oSiy
8053 ~(ps ds) Mag Juo)
$083 -{pis Bas) Aag juodH
siopusa -(pa ds) uBg HUOD
pusa {Yyos 'dwep swoy jagq uBL Ylo) MBS JJUoD
SIopuaA (YIs pue awioy 18q) ADS JJuoD
Y23 20I0YD-SHuAd NAIT Ul PiY - "AIBS RIUGD
YOS ISHBYD-SIAG NBIT Ul PIY - 'AlBS REBIWOD
Yog ang UON-SIWAG NaiT ut Pl - "AI8S RIu0Y
S8SNQ jO0YDS - SjuswAed |ejuay
saoies e W ¢ sedal ‘Buuesin
|00UDS 9 BLIGY USamiaq LBy} Joylo suel) jidnd saueesg
pa oads - (Jooyos ¥ AWy Usamiaq) suel} idnd ssueles
SPIE BUCHINIISUI-UOU JO $BLIBIES
AJBS UoneUOdSUR)) JUSPNIS

ApInoes (810}
sapddng jeisusn
$BOIAUDS {BDILLOS} pUE [Ru0ISSIIoN] paseydIng

sollejeg

Aunoes

92



00'¥88'GLOE 00'¥e8'GL0L 00 P88'SLO' L
00001 0000} 00001
00°000'55 005602 00°660°20) 00'005'S9 00'S65'8E
00°'565'9¢ 00°665'8¢ 00666 '8¢
00°000'65 000088 00'005c9 00°005'¢%
SO'0£8'LE G6'GY6'9LL 00°9.L'8EL 00'9.4'881
G0/E0'01 G6'£55'99 00'165'92 {00'581) 00'924°'9L
00'E6L's o0ZBE' LS 00'68L L 00's8L 00°000° LY
00°000'S 00°000'8 00°000'8
00°000°EL 00°000'E1 00'000'€L
{r/'855'G66°L1) GZ'690°'1.8'88 16°015'6/8'9L 00'LLZ'9V8 00'6SE'e5E'6.
0000t 00001 00°001
(ge'865'cec 1) £6'GR6'ZZ5'8G GG /8C'661 b 00 ¥65'60¢€' L 00'PO0'9LLZY
(6868820t L1} 68°68E' L0V 2L
(68'102°0v¥'2) 68 1020V’
(00°z9p's) o00°Zar'y
(o0 412'c80'2) 00'LLL'SER'E
(00'6L6'921'2L) 00'515'82L°Z1
VALV OL TWNid NIV IE9ang SININONTAY 13s5ana
JONVIMVA ToNI4 ONY SHI4SNWAL TUYNIDIHO
13oang
220z DE aNNF OIaNT HV3A TVosid
ONf1d TWHINID
FINO3H0S NOSTHVANOD AdYI300Ng
IDHISTH TOOHIS AVMMYY 40 ALID
TI#F 533HS

w0 L181HXE

sasay enden Ul asealsuy
angsay |enden o) psodaq 1sam81u]

‘AJBS 'JSU00 pue uogisinboe sayj|9e; 830 L
Buipun4 wOS uo s0IASS 1a3(T JO] JUSWSSassy
$BOIAIDS LIOIIONISUOD

AJOS JSUOD DUB UONISInbOR Saoe 4

Justudinbe (ejo ]
SE0INBS [BIPDISNY - ‘puadx3 ISIpUn
DR (00YIS 10} JUIBN paimbay - ‘pusdxy 1SIpUN
epnig - soluag uoddng - puadxy I1SIpUn
Boud 15Ul Y0 pue pasosuods-{ooyoy - ‘pusdx Isipun

UBnoNIsUY)

sainypuadxa pangulsipur
CAYILNO TYLEIdYD

ASNIdXT LINFHHND - STUNLIONTGIXD TWL0L

8MADSDI BOUBUIUIBW LD paUIEd 1SalaU]

SIUNLIANIIXS GILNGHLISIONN TYLOL

{pe1afipng-uou) suonngUILOS AIND3S |BIDOS JYd L PESINQUIDY
{pasfipng-ucu) souemnsu; Alqestp wnal-Buoj 2ydy HeUsG-uQ
{pejabpng-uou) suojinquiuod uud Jydi Heysq-uQ
{p=1ebpng-uoy) suonnguiueo usistad 4ydl Heusa-ug

93



L9612 106'GE ¢
(00 191 86°Z)
' 089'788'8L $
18%9G'8E2
86°6F2'855
00'660°GL
90°462°192'6
00°ZYE'EES
00'899'6.8
00°000'008"¢
00°000°008°L &
(86'6¢L'202'8) § ¥ 0BO'ZBE'SL $ 6 PFEB.9°0L ¢ {00°L22'604) $ 0000668/ LY
$ 00 LF9'GLO'EL $  00I¥P9SI9EL $ $ 00 Lb9'si9'El
{g6'geL'202']) LP'BE0'L02'G (15'969'G66'T) (00 222'804) (00 LPL'OLE'L)
$ (00081°'688) % (00'081'68€) g 3 (00'08F'68%)
(s6'ceL'zZ02')) $  I¥'BLE'9ES'S ¢ {(15°912°509'2) $ {00°242'600) % {(po'189'028'L)
(sgzoz'9za'0L} ¢ 0Z'0£6'65.'98 $ LS/TLEEBLL $ DULLLBOL $ 00TiLeveel
00°2¥9'0L $ 0002822 $  00Zor'L0S $ $ 00ZOF'LOE
00°Z¥9'9L $ 00028'veE $ 00'Z9%'LOC $ $ 00'2or'L0E
SO'vLLZED') $  S60V0'F9L $ 00°¢SL'96Z'L $  0000§'E9 § 00'SSE'EBL'L
TYNLOV OL T¥Nid TNLOV 139418 SINZWONTAV 1=350n8
JONVIHYA “TYNi CONY SHIJISNYHL IYNIDIHO
Ll3oang
2202 0t INNr O30NT HvYdA 1voSH
aNNd fYdaNTs
FIO3H0S NOSTHVANDD AdYLISang
1O1HISIO TOOHDS AVMHYY 40 ALID
SIF [33HS

w300 LIBIHX3

(dyyD) spuny uaswwaaob Jad aoueleq pund
SIS0 Yo U0 paziuBooal 1ou sjuawhed pie s1els 1581
SUBLLIBIRIG PUNA JLBLIUIBAQL) 0] UOHENIDUCY

paubisseun
SOOUBIGWINDIUT
paubissy
VHOOAMNES
anlasay |eyden
aAesay Juawlojdwaun
AAlDSAM BOUBUSIUIEH
JBaA BUNs - Snpding $S80X3

sainupuadxy sieaa uanbasgng o} pajeudisaq - sniding §582x3

paioLISeY
:uonenydesay

0¢ aunp ‘soue|eq pundg
L Anp ‘ecueieq pun.g

{sasn) sainjipuadxe (Japun} Jand
{se0in0s) SBnUaAS! jo (AXUsioysp) sseoxg

UOISOU| -SnUBAS] |2109dS 0} J2SUBI] -UORNGLILOS |B007
{s@sn) saounos Budueuy LUIO

s npuadxs (Jopun) J8a0
sanuana; Jo {Aousoyep) sseox3g

IVLOL ANVHO ONMN4 TYH3INID
SI100HDIS YILYVYHD OL HI4SNVHL WIOL

100U2S J8HEBYD O SPUN; JO JgySUeRIE

AYLLNG WLdWO VI0L

94



Zh' 796 BLY

91'€88'508

9Z'BLO'VLL

Ty Z96'6LY

00 5P ZEY

ZvLLL LY

00'08v'68¢
gc'sel 186'e B0'Z0P L86'8 oF Z€5'896'GL 9b L6V 1298 00'0v0'2%E L
GEEGL0BE © GZ 196 66F 56024 688°S S50Z/688'E
S8 08y R20T Z2Lig'ecoe L0Z98'159'S Z0669'GLE'L 00'eeg'sele
oLess'es 29'295'952 ZLSIE0EE FINICE T2 00'000°S
L&'1E9'0GE EL'816'9LT Y0 156297 PO LOY bLE 000sLes
00°005'6 00'866'9L 00 961'92 00’6’ L2 00'000's
ZLTLLTOL ELELE'6 2o LLL SZPri'orL 00°000'52
¥9'99¢ 'Y 2V 0TL'6EL 9080894 a0 L8y'erl 00°006'52
00’2810 00812 LS 00°00%' L6 00°GO¥'9L 00'00C'SL
¥6GELYLL 90'898'c81'Z 00'r00'852' 00'98'S0r 00084 768’
00'TeR'68L'L 012292 DO'E09'98) L 00°088'95% 00'S2L'6TL
¥1282'82T 92 161’289 00'656°0L8 00'6ZE'£2 00'059'c08
A< 1096 bO8'Y Ye e L2709 ve/0918¢ 00°ZLEL19'E
00’662 0€ 00'662 O£ 00’862 00°060°0¢
00 0¥ 06'ore {copog) 00004k
18'798°69¢ 20°€ZR'EP'S 66°281'E1Z'T 66 8F7 028’1 00'682'26E
LOBLZ 0L 86°06£'8Y0"L 00'699'850'% 00'699'85) 00'000'006
g8l Ll 0L'8Le'9L Q0 LE0'P6 00208 00'000'04
5866106 §9°66L'06 §9'GB1L Q0'000°06
03568 FPD'L 06°0E1 968 L 00928 0F6'Z 00'88T'ESL 00°8€5'483'2
(98 26¥'82¢ L) 0S°680'68' 8 Y JEG'ROB G 97 I6V' 129’8 0000 LPE L
{Ec'250'089) B6'GBO LSS ZEePL LY ZEBYL ZLY
{60°12£'€0L'G) SO 185" vET Y ¥1'206'LE6'S y1'698'Lr0'8 00'€L0'988'L
(rsvzL'0PS'L) 9y’ Zag'eL0'y 00 2BY'S49'S 00°08v°29L 00°L00°i5+'s

WISV L IYNId ALY FE] ETNANONINY 1F500d
FONVIHYA TN /SHAJSNYHL L39008 TYNIOIHO

W€ 0w LIIHXZ

¢¢0Z "0F 3NN U30NT HV3A TyDs5]d HO4

AN 3NINIATY W06
FINAIHIS NOSIHYENOD AHVIIDANE

J5TE1SI0 TOOHIS AVMHYY 40 ALID

@ouejeg pun 0L

SBANDE JUBpMS
sdiysie|oyos
palasay

DE BUNP 'BOURRY DUN

L Ainf ‘aoueeq pung

sasnupuadxy (1Bpunipeag ssoinog Buouely
JBYIO pue sanuanal jo (Aousnyap) ssaoxg

up suagsuen Bunersdg

{swsn) sa0inos BunueLy JBYO

sAIN}pUAdXD [B1G),

swdmba jeuoINASUFUON

Wawdinbg

sannies Joddns [Bjo)

sanppuadxa SNoaUR|EOSIN

s[eLajew pue sayddng

SaDAIBS uoneIcdsuRs ] PARBARUCYD
sa01/Bs paseuaInd JauylD

SIVIAIBG BOUBUBILIRIN pue Jieday ‘Buueal)

sjeuey

SEIAIRS |BUQISSBI0KT PESBUDING
slysuag saA0IdWS ~ STOAIBS [BUOSIaY
SLBIES - $BOIUSS {BUOSIa

saoaas poddng
uanoNISUl B0}

8108[Go JBUIO
SHOOQIXD |
salddns |esauan
uomn,

5801A05 paseysind Jayld
SSOAIDS [BUCHRONPE (RUOISSDJ0Id pasEyoINg
$BURIES - SIOIAIBS [BUDSIS

UOHINASU
SPHNLAND XS

SBNUBARI 1B)0 |

SANOS JBYID

$BOINOS BIapa

SB0UINOS LIS
'SINNIATY

95



CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary) "revenues” from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that encumbrances are recognized as
expenditures, and related revenue is recognized.

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary
purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmental funds.

Uses/outfiows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedules

Difference - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered
but not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
- governmentai funds.

96

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENLE
FUND FUND
$04,356,440.67 $8,645,039.50
(520,062.40)
3,685,829.00

(2,981,461.00)

{490,846.00}

95,060,817.67 7,634,131.10
$88,759,930.20 8,987,402.08

(520,062.40)
$68,759,930.20 $8,467,339.68




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART Il
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
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EXHIBIT "L-4"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NQTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART I
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30 Rate Return Study Period
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07101/14-06/30/18
2020 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/14-06/30/18
2019 6.28% 7.00% 07101/14-06/30/18
2018 5.66% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2017 5.00% 7.00% 07/01/11-06/30/14
2016 3.98% 7.65% 07101/11-06/30/14
2015 4.90% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2014 5.39% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11
2013 5.55% 7.90% 07/01/08-06/30/11

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:
None

Change in assumptions:
The foliowing assumptions were used in calculating the net pension
liability in their respective accounting periods:

Long-Term
Measurement Expected Actuarial
Date Ending Discount Rate of Experience
June 30, Rate Return Study Period
2021 7.00% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2020 5.40% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2019 560% 7.00% 07/01/15-06/30/18
2018 4.86% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2017 4.25% 7.00% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2016 322% 7.65% 07/01/12-06/30/15
2015 4.13% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2014 4.68% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12
2013 4.95% 7.90% 07/01/09-06/30/12



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 765}
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Change in benefit terms:

The implementation of Chapter 44 Plan and contribution strategy affecting pre-Medicare
future and current retirees and dependents who enroll in the New Jersey Educator Health
Plan option upon retirement and were not grandfathered under Chapter 78 (fewer than 20
years of service as of July 1, 2011) is reflected for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
as a Plan change.

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net OPEB liability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Discount
June 30, Rate
2021 2.16%
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specific purposes other than debt
service or capital projects.
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES-BUDGETARY BASIS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2022

ISSUE/PROJECT TITLE
Roosevelt Roof
Security Grant (Alyssa's Law)

Pre-Referendum Costs

Rooseveit School Masonry and Front Entrance Improvements

Referendum - Frankiin Non-Educational Improvements
Referendum - Frankfin Roof Replacement

Referendum - Cleveland Non-Educational Improvements
Referendum - Madison Educational Improvements
Referendum - Madison Non-Educational Improvements
Referendum - Madison Roof Replacement

Referendum - Roosevelt Non-Educational Improvements
Referendum - Rooseveit Roof Replacement
Referendum - Academy Non-Educational Improvements
Referendum - High School Educational Improvements

Referendum - High School Non-Educational Improvements

Totals

EXPENDITURES TO DATE

EXHIBIT "F-1"

BALANCE

APPROPRIATIONS PRIOR YEAR CURRENT YEAR JUNE 30, 2022
4 937,458.00 194,131.00 § 720,749.13 § 22,577 .87
212,332.00 96,237.00 98,296 .84 17,798.16
27,000.00 600.00 26,400.00

1,279,000.0C 1,277.407.80 1,592.20
2,680,834.00 162,489.30 2,528,364.70
3.,189,212.00 345,770,119 2,843,441%.81
2,287,418.00 70.829.29 2,216,589.71
2,520,728.00 57,031.30 2.463,696.70
1,757,566.00 86,617 49 1.690,948.51
1.203,804.00 150,054.26 1,063,749.74
8,739,450.00 533,302.30 8,206,147 70
930,726.00 140,228.53 T90,497.47
7.531,429.00 254,799.93 7.278,709.07
272176.00 9,739.67 262,436 33
7.580,656.00 195,188.93 7.385,467.07

$ 41,169,790.00 28096800 3 4,108,804 96 % 36,770,017 04
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PRCJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-2"

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
interest Earned on Bond Proceeds
Bond Proceeds

Total Revenues and Other Financing Scurces

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Legal Services
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Qther financing sources {uses):
Transfers ouf

Total other financing sources {uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Reconciliation 1o GAAP Financial Statements;
Fund Balance- Budgetary Basis (Exhibit F-2)

Less: Unearned Revenue (GAAP Basis)

Fund Balance- GAAP Basis (Exhibit B-1)

Recapitulation:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Restricted for Capital Projects
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4,755.55
38,714,000.00

38,718,755.55

80,637.09
1.877,326.38
2,350,841.49

4,108,804.96

34,609,950.59

{4,755.55)

{4,755.55)

34,605,195.04

2,164,822.00

36,770,017.04

36,770,017.04

49,091.30

36,720,925.74

5,644,215.92
31,076,709.82

36,720,825.74




SCHEDULE QF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANGE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

€ITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FLIND

BUDGETARY BASIS
ROOSEVELT ROOF
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 306, 2022

EXHIBIT "F.2A"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRICR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfer from capital reserve % 937,458.00 $ $ 937,458.00 % 937.458.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 937.458.00 937,458.00 937,458.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 157,332.00 31,155.68 188,487.68 188,487.68

Construction Services 36,799.00 689,593 45 726,302.45 748,970.32
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 194,131.00 720,749.13 91488013 § 937,458.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures $ 74332700 & (720,749.13) § 22 577.87
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number NIA

Grant Dale N/A

Bond Authorization Date N/A

Bonds Authorized NIA

Bonds Issued N/A

Qriginal Authorized Cost $937,453.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $937,458.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 97.59%

Criginal Target Completion Date B8130/22

Revised Target Completion Date B/30/23
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SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANGE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS
SECURITY PROJECTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES:
SDA Grant b3

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING LISES:
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Consfruction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under} Expenditures $

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Dafe
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Criginal Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Qriginal Target Completion Dale
Revised Target Completion Date

EXHIBIT "F-28"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR JOTALS COST
21233200 % 3 21233200 § 212.332.00
212,332.00 212,332.00 212,332.00
46,568.00 2,000.00 48,558.00 48,800.00
49,679.00 96,296.84 145,975.84 163,532.00
96,237.00 98,296.84 194.533.84 % 212.332.00
116,095.00 % (88,266.84) $ 17,798,186
N/A
630121
N/A
N/A,
N/A
$212,332.00
$212,332.00
91.62%
6/30/22
8/30/23
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SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY BASIS
PRE-REFERENDUM COSTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfer from capital reserve $

Total Revenues and Gther Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Purchased Professicnal and Technicat Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures $

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Dale
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Originat Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion
Original Target Compietion Date
Revised Targel Compietion Date

EXHIBIT "F-2C

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS CCS8T
27,000.00 2700000 % 27,000.00
27.000.00 27,000.00 27,000.00
600.00 256,400.00 27.,000.00 27.000.00
§00.00 26,400.00 2700000 $ 27,000.00
26,400.00 {26.400.00)
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
$27,000.00
$27,000.00
100.00%
6/30/22
6/30/22
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EXHIBIT "F-2D"

CITY OF RAMWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, FROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
ROOSEVELT SCHOOL MASONRY AND FRONT ENTRANCE IMPROVEMENTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAEL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIQDS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Transfer from capital reserve $ 1,279,00000 § $ 1,279,000.00 % 1,279,000.00
Total Revenues and Cther Financing Sources 1,279,000.00 1,279,000.00 1.279,000.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Construction Services 1,277,407 80 1,277 407.80 1,279,000.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 1,277.407.80 127740780 § 1,279,000.00
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures 3 1.279,000.00 8 (1,277, 407.80) % 1,5692.20
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Proiect Number N/A

Bond Authorization Date NIA

Bonds Authorized N/A

Bonds Issued N/A

Original Authorized Cost $1,279,000.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $1,279,000.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 99.88%

Original Target Completion Date 6130122

Revised Target Completion Date 6/30722
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CiTY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

REFERENDLUM - FRANKLIN NON-EDUCATIONAL

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-2E"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers $ 2,600,834.00 3 2,690,834.00 2,690,834.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 2,690,834.00 2,690,834.00 2,690,834.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 6,624.61 6,624.61 13,455.00

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 151,844.69 151.844.69 290,387.00

Construction Services 4,000.60 4,000.00 2,386,992.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 162,469.30 162,469.30 2.690,834.00
Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures 3 252836470 $ 2,528,364.70
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-080-20-2000

Bond Authorization Date 12115121

Bonds Authorized $2.690,834.00

Bonds Issued $2,690,834.00

Original Authorized Cost $2,690,834.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $2,690,834.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Compietion 6.04%

Criginal Target Completion Date 6/30/24

Revised Target Completion Date 6130124
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOQL, DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRQJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BURGETARY BASIS
REFERENDUM - FRANKLIN ROOF

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond proceeds and transfers $

EXHIBIT "F-2F"

Total Revenues and Cther Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Legal Services
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construciion Services

Total Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COSsT

$ 3.189,212.00 & 3,189,212.00 3,188,212.00

3,189,212.00 3,189,212.00 3,189,212 .00

6,447.61 6,447 .61 15,946.00

202,215.48 202,215.48 324,706.00

137,107.10 137,107.10 2,848.560.00

345,770.19 345,770.19 3,188,212.00
L} 284344181 % 2,843,441.81

{Under) Expenditures $

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-080-20-5000
Bond Authorization Date 12M5/21
Bonds Authorized $3,189,212.00
Bonds Issued $3,189,212.00
Original Authorized Cost $3,189,212.00
Additionat Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $3,189,212.00
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 10.84%
Original Target Completion Date 630424
Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CiTY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUBGETARY BASIS

REFERENDUM - CLEVELAND NON-EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-2G"

REVISED
. AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers $ $ 2,287,419.00 2.287,419.00 2,287.419.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 2,287,419.00 2,287.419.00 2,287.419.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 4,624 48 4,624.48 11,438.00

Purchased Professional and Technicat Services 66,204.81 £6,204.81 231,091.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 70,829.29 70,829.29 2.287,419.00
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures $ $ 2,216,589.M1 2,216,589.71
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-090-20-1000

Bond Authorization Date 1211521

Bonds Authorized $2,287,419.00

Bonds lssued $2,287 419.00

Original Authorized Cost $2,287 418.00

Additionat Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $2,287.419.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 3.10%

Original Target Completion Date 6/30/24

Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS
REFERENDUM - MADISON EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-2H"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIOBS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS CcosT
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and iransfers $ $ 252072800 % 2,520,72800 & 2,520,728.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources ' 2,520,728.00 2,520,728 00 2,520,728.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

{ egal Services 5,096.14 5,096.14 12.604.00

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 51,935.16 51,935.16 264,454.00

Construction Services 2,243,670.00
Total Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses 57.031.30 5703130 § 2,520,728.00
Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues Cver

{Under) Expendilures $ 3 246369670 $ 2,463,696.70
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-110-20-4000

Bond Authorization Date 12115121

Bonds Authorized $2,520,728.00

Bonds Issued $2,520,728.00

Criginal Authorized Cost $2,620,728.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $2,520,728.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 2.26%

Original Target Completion Date 6/30/24

Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRQJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

REFERENDUM - MADISON NON-EDUCATIOAL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 306, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-21"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers $ $ 1,757 566.00 % 1,757,566.00 1,757,566.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 1,757,566.00 1,757,566.00 1,757,566.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 3,553.23 3,553.23 8,789.00

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 63,064.26 63,064.26 192,315.00

Construction Services 1,556,462.00
Total Expendiures and Other Financing Uses 66.617.49 66,617.49 1,757,566.00
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures $ $ 1,690,64851 3 1,690,848.51
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-110-20-1000

Bond Authorization Dale 12115021

Bonds Authorized $1,757,566.00

Bonds Issued $1,757,566.00

Criginal Authorized Cost $1,757,566.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $1,757,566.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 3.79%

Original Target Completion Date 6130124

Revised Target Complelion Date 6/30/24
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EXHIBIT "F-2J"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAFRITAL PRQJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
REFERENDUM - MADISON RQOF REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENREDR JUNE 30, 2022

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers s % 1.203,804.00 § 1,203,80400 % 1,203,804.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 1,203,804.00 1,203,804.00 1,203,804.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 243372 2,433.72 6,019.00

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 77.629.82 77.629.82 125,945.00

Consfruclion Services 69,990.72 69,990.72 1,071.840.00
Tolal Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 150,064.26 150,054.26 § 1,203,804.00
Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures $ $ 1,053,74974 % 1,053,749.74
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-110-20-6000

Bond Authorization Date 12115621

Bonds Authorized $1,203,804.00

Bonds Issued $1,203.804.00

Original Authorized Cost $1,203,804.00

Additional Authorized Cost '

Revised Authorized Cost $1,203,804.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 12.47%

Original Target Completion Date 6/30/24

Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS
REFERENDUM - ROOSEVELT NON-EDUCATIONAL, IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-2K"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERICDS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers $ 3 8,73845000 &% 8,738,450.00 8,739,450.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 8,739,450.00 8,739.450.00 8,738,450.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 18,852.89 18,852.99 43,696.00

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 514,449.31 514,449.31 954,8086.50

Construction Services 7.740,847.50
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 533,302.30 533,302.30 8,739,450.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under} Expendilures $ $ 8,206,147.70 $ 8,206,147.70
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-120-20-3000

Bond Authorization Date 121521

Bonds Authorized $8,739,450.00

Bonds Issued $8,739,450.00

Criginal Authorized Cost $8,739,450.00

Additionat Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $8,739.450.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 8.10%

Originat Targe! Completion Dale 6/30/24

Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CITY OF RAMWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT "F-2L"

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond proceeds and transfers

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services

Purchased Professional and Technical Services

Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under} Expenditures

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number

Bond Authorization Date

Bonds Authorized
Bonds issued

Original Authorized Cost
Additionat Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

BUDGETARY BASIS

REFERENDUM - ROOQSEVELT ROOF REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REWVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR JOTALS COST

$ 930,726.00 930,726.00 § 930,726.00

0.00 930,726.00 930,726.00 930,726.00

1,881.65 1,881.65 4,654.00

62.678.73 62,678.73 97,772.00

75,668.15 75,668.15 §28,300.00

0.00 140,228.53 14022853 § 930,726.00
$ 0.00 790,497 .47 790,497.00

4910-X01-17-1000
1211317
$930,726.00
$930,726.00
$930,726.00

$630,726.00

Percentage Increase over Criginal Authorized Cost

Percentage Compietion

Original Target Completion Date
Revised Target Completion Date

15.07%
6/30/24
6130124
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDLLE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

REFERENDUM - ACADEMY NON-EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEFPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

EXHIBIT "F-2M"

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST
REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Bond proceeds and transfers $ $ 753142900 % 7,531,429.00 7,531.429.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 7.531,429.00 7.531.428.00 7,5631,429.00
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Legal Services 15,226.26 15,226.26 37656.00

Purchased Professionat and Technical Services 239,493.67 239,493.67 787.073.00

Construction Services 6,706,700.00
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 254,719.93 254,719.93 7,531,429.00
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures $ $ 7.276,70907 $ 7,276,709.07
ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-060-20-2000

Bond Authorization Date 12M15/21

Bonds Authorized $7,531,429.00

Bonds Issued $7,531,429.00

Originat Authorized Cost $7.,531,429.00

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $7,531,429.00

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 3.38%

Qriginal Target Completion Date 86130124

Revised Targe! Completion Date 6130124
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAP{TAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

REFERENDUM - HIGH SCHOOL EDUCATIONAL iIMPROVEMENTS

FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond proceeds and transfers 5

EXHIBIT "F-2N"

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Legal Services
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

$ 21247600 % 272,176.00 % 272.176.00

272,176.00 272,176.00 272,176.00

550.26 550,26 1,361.00

9,189.41 9,189.41 30,135.00

240.680.00

9,739.67 9,739687 % 272,176.00
§ 262436.33  § 262,436.33

(Linder) Expenditures 3

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-050-20-1000
Bond Authorization Date 12/15/21
Bonds Authorized $272,176.00
Bonds issued $272,176.00
Originat Authorized Cost $272,176.00
Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost 5272,176.00
Percentage Increase over Criginal Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 3.58%
Original Target Completion Date 6/30/24
Revised Target Completion Date 6/30/24
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CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS
REFERENDUM - HIGH SCHOOL NON-EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Bond proceeds and transfers 3

EXHIBIT "F-20"

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:
Legal Services
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS COST

7,590,656.00 & 7.590,656.00 7,690,656.00

7,690,856.00 7,690,656.C0 7,580,656.00

15,346.14 15,346.14 37.953.00

179.065.36 179,065.36 776,662.00

777.43 777.43 §,775.841.00

195,188.93 195,188.93 7.590,656.00
7,395467.07 & 7,395,467.07

{Under) Expenditures $

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 4290-050-20-3000
Bond Authorization Date 12115121
Bonds Authorized $7.590,656.00
Bonds lssued $7,590.656.00
Onginat Authorized Cost $7,590,656.00
Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost $7.590,656.00
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion 2.57%
Criginal Target Completion Date 6130/24
Revised Target Completion Dale BI30/24
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LONG-TERM LIABILITY SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Installment Purchases,
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RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT

DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Locat Tax Levy
State Sources:

Debt Service Aid
Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES:

Regular Debt Service:
interest
Redemption of Principal
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30
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EXHIBIT "-3"

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

1,798,210.00 1,798,210.00
45,588.00 45,589.00
1,843,799.00 1,843,799.00
533,800.00 533,800.00
1,310,000.00 1.310,000.00
1,843,800.00 1,843,800.00
1,843,800.00 1,843,800.00

{1.00) {1.00)

4,765,565 4.755.565
4,764.55
158,763.16

18351771
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RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page

Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to heip the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1t0 J-5

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-6 to J-8

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district’s ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10t0 J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14 to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J4-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
annual comprehensive financial reports {(ACFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "J-7"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Rahway School District Overlapping Rates
Year Ended City of Union Total Direct and
Decermber 31 Basic Rate Total Direct Rahway County Qverlapping Tax Rate
2013 2.706 2.708 2.367 0.974 6.047
2014 2.823 2.823 2.399 0.982 6.204
2015 2.896 2.896 2.480 0.931 6.317
2016 2.935 2.935 2,519 0.935 6.389
2017 3.003 3.003 2.581 0.944 6.528
2018 3.100 3.100 2.642 0.951 8.693
2019 3.140 3.140 2.679 1.018 6.837
2020 3.158 3.158 2.716 1.051 6.925
2021 3.234 3.234 2.716 1.001 6.951
2022 3.300 3.300 2713 1.009 7.022

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
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EXHIBIT "J-9"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

UNAUDITED
Collections in
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for the Collected within the Percentage of Subsequent
June 30, Fiscat Year Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Years

2013 38,458,228 38,457,748 99.99% 480
2014 40,272,086 40,272,086 100.00% 0
2015 41,576,064 41,576,064 100.00% 0
2016 42,342,410 42,342,410 100.00% 0
2017 43,164,767 43,164,767 100.00% 0
2018 43,973,944 43,973,944 100.00% 0
2019 44 565427 44,565,427 100.00% 0
2020 46,315,135 45,315,135 100.00% 0
2021 46,623,173 46,623,173 100.00% 0
2022 46,594,889 46,594,889 100.00% 0

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)
Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality
is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount certified prior to the end

of the school.
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

CITY OF RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
Personal Income

{thousands of Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population * dollars) ® Personal Income ® Rate ®
2013 28,254 3 1,568,407,794 § 55,511.00 9.00%
2014 28,822 1,688,075,718 58,569.00 7.50%
2015 29,171 1,767,645,916 60,596.00 6.60%
2016 29,284 1,814,963,752 61,978.00 5.60%
2017 29,628 1,806,324,776 64,342.00 5.30%
2018 29,806 2.007,314,876 67,346.00 4.50%
2019 29,911 2,059,880,837 68,867.00 4.00%
2020 29,832 2,164,102,776 72,543.00 10.50%
2021 29,911 N/A N/A 7.40%
2022 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Source:
# Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.

b Personal income has been estimated basad on the municipal population and the per capita personal income
presented.

® Per Capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the census published by the US Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

¢ Unempioyment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development.

N/A-Not Available
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RAHWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2022

NJSIG
Property - Blanket Building & Contents
Comprehensive General Liability
Comprehensive Auto Liability

{Unaudited)

Comprehensive Crime Coverage (Employee Dishonesty)

Flood:
Pool Aggregate
Poocl Aggregate - Hazard Flood Zones (A)
Earthquake - Pool Aggregate

NJSIG
Boiler and Machinery

Firemen's Fund
Excess Liability

NJSIG

Worker's Compensation - Professional and Clerical (payroll)

Worker's Compensation - Non-professional and Driver (payroll)

Student Accident - GTL Insurance Company:

Ali participants - Including Interscholarship Sports & Football

Excess Student Accident - GTL Insurance Co.:

All participants Including Interscholastic Sports & Football

NJSIG
Environmental Liability Each Loss
Environmental Liability Per Member Aggregate

NJSIG
School Board Legal
Liability

Source: School District's records
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EXHIBIT "J-20"

Coverage Deductible
152,004 657 § 5,000
31,000,000
31,000,000
500,000 5,000
75,000,000 10,000
25,000,000 Max. FEMA limits
50,000,000 5,000
100,000,000 25,000
25,000,000
42 848,479
2,432,843
25,000
5,000,000
1,000,000 50,000
2,000,000
31,000,000 15,000
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EXHIBIT "K-1"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CerTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122
Telephone 908-788-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of zducation

City of Rahway School District
County of Union

Rahway, New Jersey 07065

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the
City of Rahway School District, in the County of Union, State of New Jersey (the "District") as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon
dated March 3, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Rahway School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materiaf weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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SurLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal confrol that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. However, we also noted
other matters that we have reported to the District in a separate Auditor's Management Report on
Administrative Findings — Financial and Compliance dated March 3, 2023.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we also noted other
matters that we have reported to the District in a separate Auditor's Management Report on
Administrative Findings — Financial and Compliance dated March 3, 2023.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the district's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the district's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

JM%*%

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACEOUNTANTS

Kol WJJ!»A

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

March 3, 2023
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EXHIBIT “K-2"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Teiephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL. OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB
CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education

City of Rahway School District
County of Union

Rahway, New Jersey 07065

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited City of Rahway School District, County of Union, State of New Jersey
(the “District”) compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit
in the Federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District’s major federal and
state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The District's major federal and state programs
are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)
and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement. Our responsibilities under those
standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our
report.
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SuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our audit does not provide a
legal determination of the District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal controt over compliance with
the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to the District's federal and state programs.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement
will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’'s
compliance with the requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the District's compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

157



SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A maferial weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Qur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on
the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance
Supplement. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

.wab ¢ /
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACC(Q%TANTS’
Air W AN

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

March 3, 2023
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5"
City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education,
Rahway School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the
Board’s basic financial statements. Ali federal and state awards received directly
from the federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of federal awards and state financial assistance
are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exceptions of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the
accrual basis of accounting. These basis of accounting are described in Note 1
of the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of U.S. Uniform Guidance and
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements. The District has elected not to use the 10 percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid
payment in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state
aid payment in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also
recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with
N.J.S.A 18A:22-44.2.
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EXHIBIT "K-5"

City of Rahway School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
$704,368.00 for the general fund and ($372,965.95) for the special revenue fund.
Federal awards and state financial assistance revenues are reported in the
Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $173,830.22 $40.642 497 .89 $49,816,328.11
Special Revenue Fund 3,600,556.02 3,581,617.44 7,272,173.46
Capital Projects Fund 67,003.70 67,003.70
Debt Service Fund 45,589.00 45 583.00
Food Service Fund 2,667,135.79 49 615.79 2,716,751.58
GAAP Adjustment 544 025.03 (212,622.98)
Total Awards &

Financial Assistance $7,075,547.06 $53,173,700.84 $59,917,845.85

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE 5: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits, and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2022. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2022.
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City of Rahway School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | - Summary of Auditot’s Results

Financial Statements

(1)
(2)

3)

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued:
internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

Federal Program(s)

(1)

2)

3

(4)

(6

Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:
(a) Material weakness identified?

{b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Federal Uniform Guidance?

Identification of Federal State Program(s):

CFDA
Program Number
Title | 84.010
CARES-ESSER 84.425D,84.4251),84.425W

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A Federal Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B Federal Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under Federal Uniform
Guidance?
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Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No

Yes



City of Rahway School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section | - Summary of Auditor’'s Results (Continued)

State Program(s)

(1) Internal Control Over Major State Programs:
(c) Material weakness identified?

{d) Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

(2) Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087

() Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number

State Aid Cluster:

Special Education Categorical Aid 495-034-5120-089

Security Aid 495-034-5120-084

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078
Transportation Aid 495-034-5120-014

5) Program Threshold Determination:

Type A State Program Threshold > $1,146,210.39
Type B State Program Threshold <= $1,146,210.39

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under New Jersey
OMB Circular 15-087
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City of Rahway School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

Section |l — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

internal Control Findings

None Reported

Compliance Findings

None Reported

Section Il - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs

Federal Programs ~ None Reported
State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7"
City of Rahway School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings relate to the basic financial statements
and federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12

of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB’s Circular
15-08.

Status of Prior Year Findings

Finding 2021-001, 002

Appropriation transfers were made the School Administration line items which exceeded
the statutory 10% maximum. In addition, a transfer was made from capital reserve to the capital
fund for the cost of various improvement projects. A withdrawal from capital reserve was not
approved by the Board or the County for this transfer. Furthermore, a contract was awarded for
an additional project for which no transfer was made. Such transfer was not properly reflected in
the District’'s accounting records.

Current Status

The current year audit did not indicate any transfers in excess of the statutory 10%
maximum.
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